QOakridge School District No. 76
47997 W 1% St
Qakridge, OR 97463
Oakridge School District Board Room

The Oakridge School District Regular Board Meeting is a meeting that is held in public each month.

The Board values community engagement and recognizes the importance of public input. Community
members are required to sign up for public comment and are encouraged to submit written public comment by
noon the day of the scheduled meeting.

Please follow this link to sign up for public comment https://forms.gle/SFotlfQEYAWJcwHyS5.

Please submit your public comment to osdcomments@ohswarriors.net.

Regular Session

Regular School Board Meeting
Monday, February 8, 2021
6:00 p.m. — Virtual Zoom Meeting (see link below)

Please click the link below to join the meeting:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88646155688 ?pwd=MGNHUGNWb09va05NQOtaNDI1NDduUTO09
Passcode: 711169

Or Telephone:
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):
US: +1 346 248 7799
Webinar ID: 886 4615 5688
Passcode: 711169

AGENDA

A. Reports (Discussion)
1. LESD Local Service Plan - Tony Scurto, LESD Superintendent)

B. Approval of Work Session minutes December 28, 2020, Work Session January 4, 2021, Regular Board
Meeting minutes January 11, 2021, Weorlk-Session-minutes-January 25,2021

C. Announcements/Correspondence (Information Only)
1. Public Comment Complaint against the Board
2. Budget Committee Member Vacancy, 2021-22 Budget
3. Investigative Report Concerning Complaint against the Superintendent

D. Review Expenditures for December — General Funds/Special Funds/OSD Bond — Peggy Mahla

E. Reports (Dlscussmn)
. » tt-(moved to the top of the agenda)

2, Supermtendent Report Supermtendent Doland
3. Food Service — Ashley Kirkhart
4 OJSH Report — Greg Chapman
e RSSL Plan for Hybrid Learning
5. OES Report — Peter Iten
e RSSL Plan for Hybrid Learning
6. Special Programs — Dr. Chad Harrison
E. Unfinished Business
1. Policy BDDH-Public Comment Revisions (1 read)



F. New Business
1. Resolution 20-07 Classified Employee Appreciation Week (Action)
2. Lane ESD 2021-23 Local Service Plan -Year One (Action)
3. OSEA MOU-Employee Safety During the COVID Pandemic (Action)
4. OSEA MOU-Employee Retirement Provisions (Action)

G.  Personnel
1. Employment Recommendation(s) (Action)
Classified
Andrea Bray, OES Office Manager, 8 or 10 hours (Effective January 27, 2021)
Extra Duty
Kristen Rosenblum, OJSH Teacher of Record Science (Effective September 15, 2020)
Eva Martin, Special Education Case Manager with Caseload above 25 (Effective September 15,
2020)
Karen Hale, Special Education Case Manager with Caseload above 25 (Effective September 15,
2020)
Ron Hebert, OHS Cross Country Head Coach (Effective February 2021)
Gary Jackson, OHS Football Assistant Coach (Effective February 2021)
Kierra Killingbeck, OHS Volleyball Assistant Coach (Effective February 2021)
Dang Nguyen, OJS Volleyball Assistant Coach (Effective February 2021)
Mark Osborn, OJH Football Head Coach (Effective February 2021)
Allison Williams, OHS Volleyball Head Coach (Effective February 2021)
Ray Yarbrough, OHS Football Head Coach (Effective February 2021)
Robeart Chrisman, OHS Baseball Head Coach (Effective April 2021)
David Gordon, OHS Softball Head Coach (Effective April 2021)
Sheila Keller, OJH Track Coach (Effective April 2021)
Marcia Mason, OHS Softball Assistant Coach (Effective April 2021)
Ed Mooneyhan, OHS Baseball Assistant Coach (Effective April 2021)
Dan Peck, OHS Golf Coach (Effective April 2021)
Don Jackson, OHS Wrestling Coach (Effective May 2021)
Gary Jackson, OHS Wrestling Assistant Coach (Effective May 2021)
Mark Osborn, OJH Boys Basketball Head Coach (Effective May 2021)
Bryan Williams, OJS Wrestling Coach (Effective May 2021)
Andrea Bray, OES Sub Caller (Effective January 27, 2021)

2. Request to Retire (Action)
Certified
Dan Fischer, OES/OJSH Teacher 8 hour (Effective April 1, 2021)
Jack Skordahl, Alternative Education Teacher 8 hour (Effective July 1, 2021)

3. Employee Resignation(s) (Action)
Certified
Ray Yarbrough, CTE Teacher 8 hour (Effective 03/19/2021)
Classified
Jen Bacus, OES Office Manager, 8 or 10 hours (Effective January 22, 2021)
Andrea Bray, OJSH Secretary, 8 or 10 hours (Effective January 26, 2021
Extra Duty
Kaylee Peck, OJH Girls Basketball Assistant Coach (Effective January 22, 2021)
Ron Hebert, OHS Track Head Coach (Effective January 20, 2021)

L Public Comment - (Personnel complaints will not be heard at Regular Board Meetings. Individuals with
concerns regarding personnel should follow the Complaint Procedure Policy. Complaint information is
available on the District website.)



L.

Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(b) to consider the dismissal or disciplining of, or to hear
complaints or charges brought against, a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent
who does not request an open hearing.

Executive Session Pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2)(i) Review and evaluate the employment-related
performance of the chief executive officer of any public body, a public officer, employee or staff
member, unless the person whose performance is being reviewed and evaluated requests an open
hearing.

Members of the media may contact Jayme Martin
jmartin@ohswarriors.net for login information to access the
Executive Session link in accordance with ORS 192.660(4) and
ORS 332.061(2) by noon the day of the scheduled meeting.

Future Agenda Items
1. Next Regular School Board Meeting, March 8, 2021 6:00 p.m., Virtual Zoom Meeting

2. Board Work Session TBD

Adjourn

The Board of Director meetings of Oakridge School District are held in accordance with Open Meeting Laws and with accessibility requirements. If an
individual with a disability needs assistance in order to attend or participate in a meeting or discuss a matter with the superintendent, please call the district
office at 782-2813. Posted 02/03/2021



| Shaping the future;
Supporting excellence in education

Local Service Plan
2021-23
Year One

Lane Education Service Disfrict
1200 Highway 99 North
Eugene, OR 97402
Phone: {541)461-8200
Fax: (541)461-8298



LANE
r‘,_‘-‘S.’_) Local Service Plan 2021-23

LANE

Equity — We support a respectful work
environment and access o educational
service to all students

Pur pose Commitment — To districts, student and
employee success

Sha pln g the Future - Leac_jgrship — that is informed, responsive,
Suppo n‘mg EXCG I Ience ’.n visionary, proactive and planful
. Collaboration — actively engaged with our
E dUCGTI on partners to achieve success

Integrity—approach our work with ethical
actions, making and keeping
commitments, courage and humility

Strategic Plan
5 Bold Steps

Creating and Implementing Innovative
Initiatives that Directly Impact or
Influence Student Success

Supporting Best Instructional Practices

Modeling and Promoting Equitable
Practice for All

Leadership — Leveraging Education and
Community Partners

Strong Student Centered Advocacy

Page 2



LANE
r’:SD Local Service Plan 2021-23

COMPONENT DISHICTS....c.eceeeeceer ettt et et e be s e sres e s e sas e esteensesnesessessssssseans 6
Core Services and Funding Formula/Allocation MOEL..........ceeeivieieeiiieeeeeeceeeeeeee e 7
2021-23 (Year one) LOCAI SEIVICE PIAN ...ttt ees ettt eeeeetesse s s sssess s s 7
COTE SEIVICES ...ttt sttt e et e e s e sebeere st e see s s sba st eb s aat e s esaenseneseaseesesensesensesseseas 7
MENU SEIVICES ...ttt s ctete st te et st eas et sserese st st s st srmeseesssaneeensssenessessesenessssseseas 7
CUSTOM SBIVICES c.iivieiiecctctcttte ettt sttt et en st st et b b et enestenenesn et easenssesssssssessnnans 7
2021-23 LOCAI SEIVICE PlON ...ttt ettt e bt e e et st este s e s e e smeesseseas 8
WIthdrawal from LANE ESD ..ottt ettt esaesbasae e sesene e s ne s s st etesen e seene 8
Potential Changes in FUNAING ..ottt st eve ettt steete s e e s st teeas 8
Process for Selecting Lane ESD Menu Services & SErviCe LEVEIS ..........o.oeeeeoreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeene 9
Core ServiCe - DECISION MOKING ......coireiieireitentieeeteeetse e eeesr s sete st seteeesaeesses s sesesss s ressesaes 9
DiSHTCT FEEADACK ... oottt ettt a e st st st e et et e eee e aoreses e seeesaeas 9
Changing Services INCIuded IN COME SEIVICES.......cvuuiiiiceeeeeetieeeeeeieeeeeeeeeetseeet e e e e esesssseas 9
TIMEBINES ...ttt e e rre e es e e e bt s e e s b ese s e et en e e meennes s ssessseesesensone 9
Menu Services — DeCISION MOKING ...c.oiviiitiieiietecee ettt sttt et seeseesee s e s s eene e s ees e 11
AAAING SEIVICES 10 ThE MENU ...ttt e e e e s s esas et 11
TIMEINES ..ottt ettt st eer e cr e s e e se b en b et e s et enbetaseneneeneeneeaseensresemeseeseenns 11
ElIMiINQTION OF SEIVICE ......eoreiece ettt ee e e e s ee e e serstenesaeesnas 11
Establishing Pilot/CuUSTOmM SEIVICES.......co ittt sae e e eeees 11
SEIVICE FIEXIDIIY ...eeeirereereeiireere ettt e ben e e eeee s e e s e e st e e e s 12
SEIVICE IMPIICAHONS ...ttt et nen e r e et e eaeense e eeseennsetesesensseessos 12
MENU OF SEBIVICES ...ttt ettt s e st et et s ees e e eeesnessaesseensesnsssnesesesees 13
CUITENT MEBNU .ottt et e e s a e bbb st bt ene e re e e et se s es e s s eeeeeens 13
FUNGING SOUMCES ..ottt steste s e ss e e et b s e s seesees e et smesessssseeeseseeeseessessssenesessss 14
State SChoOl FUND (SSF) REVENUE ...ttt ettt ee e e e nens 14
MeENU OF SEIVICES FUNCING .c.ccuvetiieeie ettt e es b sr e sre st e et eeeseeeseesteae et essmesessoas 14
OFNEI SEIVICES ...ttt sae st s st e e s e e s e se et e meess et et e tete s e seseseessesessassesstens 14
Programs Included in 10% AdmINIStrative REVENUE..........cuveciiciieceeee e 15
HOME SCNOONNG ....oeeiiere ettt a s s seae b e bt s beae et eeeeseeesmesaess s easesaes 15
Federal & State Mandates fOr Oregon ESDS.......uuieeeeeeeeieeeeieceeeee et sevestte s e ees s ssessesteseaes 16
Services 1o Children with SPECIAI NEEUS .........ocevreeeeeitieeecrceeteetet ettt ee e re e e s e eenas 16
SChOOI IMPIOVEMENT SEIVICES....ueieeeiteeire ettt esteet e st e s e s s e s assre s e ssesesaea 16
TECNNOIOQY SEIVICES ...t ettt s b e s s s sreebe b s st e sae e eeneseerensenssnas 16
AAMINISITATIVE SUPPOIT SEIVICES ..ottt ettt s et e s es e e rsea 16
OFNEI SEIVICES ...ttt sttt eae s en e tseneete st s se et ste s ee st e senmessestsseseasaes 16
PErfOIMONCE MEOISUIES ..ottt sa et et sbe e sttt e teee s e e et asseeeseeeseeseseesess 16
Services to Children With SPECIAI NEEUS ...........ooeieeeeeeeee e e 17
Life SKills CONSOITIUM SEIVICES ......coiiirieieiieeieteee e vttt ettt e et et e e e etesr e st 17
Services 1o Children With SPeCIAI NEEUS ...........oooee ittt e et e e e e ee s 18
BehAVIOr DISOITEY SEIVICES.....otireiiteeeeetete ettt et e et e e e s e esees e 18
Services to Children With SPECIAI NEEUS .........cuv ettt e et ee e ettt 19
Behavior DISOrder —CONSUIANTS ..ottt es st seae e e s es s s seesenas 19
Martin Luther King, Jr. EQUCAHON CeNTE ..ot ee e 19
SChOOI PSYCROIOQY SEIVICES .....ceouiiiieerereiisreeerereeee s esesas st ese et en et st s e eess e e s et e renns 20
SPEECI SEIVICES ...ttt sttt b et st s e e e se e s e e et e et e eee e 21
Augmentative CoOMMUNICATION .......coiiiiiieiiiiiteiceeee et e en e 2]



LANE
. ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Sign Language INterpreting SEIVICE ... 22
DT CHON SEIVICE oviiieeeeeeeeeetieeeeteeeerttae e s saeesabessbeeses b e sene s s saseebbe s besssab s s e ab b s sb b e e e bR b e s b s s e e bbb s et bnaesassssnnens 22
Services iN SChOO! IMPIOVEMENT ...ttt st ase s e s e nes 24
INISTTUCHION oot eeteeeteeeetseesbse s eesereesssesaeessesbaassaaastessaassa s e e s e e s bs e e b b e e s s as s e b S S Rad e e kb e s eas s et s e ab et e s bnr e s 24
EQUITY weoveeeitereteeirieeirteeseesessssseeeseesesessstsssssnssbe e st b e e s e e ea e s e et s et st st s b e Aa et s bt b et e b e bbb bbbt 00 24
(o (A L=1 11811 o LT OO OO OO OO PO OISO OISO PI SRR 25
Services iN SChoO IMPIOVEMENT ........ivcirerccciiinc s san e 26
Career & TeChNICAl EAUCOTON ...ttt esretsree et s st sesss s aa s e saab s s as s s bs s aba s 26
CoNNECTEA LANE COUNTY ..ottt e st r st a e s nsn e s s b et b e e en s 27
TrOGEAY RESPONSE ...o.veieeeiecereiirceriir et b st bbb s e bbb bt s et b ettt b e 27
Lane ESD Student Success Act Comprehensive Support Plant ..., 28
TECNNOIOGY SEIVICES ..uveeirieienecrreeeniie ittt et et st se e s sema s s se s eme e 31
INFrastruCtUral TECHNOIOGY ..o vireerrirerreeeiete e s e s e s 31
AMINISITOTIVE SEIVICES ....oviiivieeeieeereetre e cieeetttrireeseseessesssssnssrressnessssse s eras s sebtessssseessessassesensseesnnansesanans 33
BUSINIESS SEIVICES. . uiiecirieeiierreeeeiieeeeiseeeeeeseesibsesateessnte s bseseas s s seesbbssssbase e b b ees st e ssbanassnnTesssansssansonsenssnntas 33
COUIET SEIVICES. ... eeeeeeeeeeeeereesteeesssessisnrseesseesssssansassstesassaesiesssssesssneesssmnesssseesssssssasessnnseransissasesssesssnnens 34
LIDTQIGIN SEIVICES .ccviiecevereeeeeieeeeecerneseeeteessssesstesesteessnesessesoseeessseesasassssassesrsssbbaasbaesssbbessabaeesasnnnesss 34
Substitute Teacher List SUDSCIIDTION .....covviieiireecert e 34
AHENAANCE/TIUQNCY SEIVICES .vecuvieeireeeireeieirsccsr sttt sre s e s e st e sbna s s e e s abe s s et assasnsans 35
APPENAIX ....ooveeetiereiriesessier e as st bbb E s ettt R e 36

Page 4



LANE
{ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

This page intentionally left blank.

Page 5



LANE

(ESD Local Service Plan

2021-23

Component Districts

Bethel, #52
Superintendent — Chris Parra

Blachly, #90
Superintendent - Adam Watkins

Creswell, #40
Superintendent — Mike Johnson

Crow-Applegate-Lorane, # 66
Superintendent -~ Malcom McCroe

Eugene, #4J)
Superintendent - Cydney Vandercar

Fern Ridge, #28J
Superintendent - Gary Carpenter

Junction City, #69
Superintendent — Kathleen Rodden-Nord

Lowell, #71
Superintendent - Johnie Matthews

Page 6

Mapleton, #32
Superintendent — Jodi O'Mara

Marcola, #79)
Superintendent — Terry Augustadt

McKenzie, #468
Superintendent — Lane Tompkins

Oakridge, #74
Superintendent - Reta Doland

Pleasant Hill, #1
Superintendent - Scott Linenberger

Siuslaw, #97)
Superintendent — Andy Grzeskowiak

South Lane, #45)
Superintendent — Yvonne Curtis

Springfield, #19
Superintendent — Todd Hamilton



LANE
/ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Core Services and Funding Formula/Allocation Model

Lane ESD’s Core Services and Funding Formula/Allocation Model provides the basis for
allocating Lane ESD's resolution funds for Core Services and distribution of funds to districts.
ORS 334.177 requires that at least ninety percent (90%) of all ESD revenues from the State
School Fund (SSF) and other funds considered local revenues be spent on the provision of
services approved in the Local Service Plan. The remaining ten percent (10%) may be spent
on administrative services.

2021-23 (Year one) Local Service Plan

As provided for in ORS 334.177 districts noftified the ESD of the intention to withdraw funds by
November 1, 2020, as well as the percentage of funds 1o be withdrawn. Lane County districts
have been asked to select a percentage range rather than identifying an exact percentage.
No district requested more than 50% of available fransit funds.

Because current ADMw numbers are not available during the development or
implementation of the 2021-23 (Year Two) Local Service Plan, the most recent ADM figures, as
provided by ODE, are used for the Core Services and Funding Formula/Allocation Model.

Withdrawal of Transit Funds
Districts electing to withdraw transit funds in excess of 50% will be assessed a fee on services
ordered from the ESD as follows:

51%-80% 10% service fee
81%-100% 15% service fee

The 2021-23 Local Service Plan provides three categories of service:

Core Services

Core Services are funded prior to the allocation of district Flex Funds and do not require
districts to use their Flex Funds. Technology, General Education, Connected Lane County
support, Innovation Project Funds and the Life Skills Cost Pool are currently designated Core
Services.

Core Services are designed so that essential services are available to all districts. Core
Services will not necessarily meet all of any individual district's needs. Districts are strongly
encouraged to take advantage of Core Services. Core Services provide stability and flexibly
in meeting county-wide needs where the level of supports may vary from district to district and
from year-to-year; generally the true value of the service is realized over time.

Menu Services

These are services available from a “menu of services” that provides districts with the option to
select or order available services. The cost of the services is covered by Flex Funds allocated
to districts or district funds.

Custom Services
These are services that are developed for an individual district or group of districts based on a
specific need. These services may include the assignment of a specific amount of FTE or the

Page 7



LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

provision of a service (e.g. payroll/business services, professional development, fechnology
technician/engineer). Districts order the amount of service desired to meet their needs.
Districts are assessed the full cost of the service and may use Flex Funds or district funds to pay
for these services.

Changes for 2021-23 (Year one) Local Service Plan include the following:

Core Services and Funding Formula/Allocation Model
1. Addition of a Security Systems Administrator in Technology Services o help districts with
prevention of and response to cyber threats and systems security.
1. Librarian services added to menu.

2021-23 Local Service Plan

The Superintendents’ Council agreed to a two-year Local Service Plan framework, with the
intent of aligning with Oregon's K-12 biennium funding structure. Alignment of the Local
Service Plan with the two-year fiscal cycle provides stability and opportunity for long-range
planning. Lane ESD programs can focus more strategically on implementation of services that
support district long-range goals, while maintaining the ability to assess and make program
adjustments to meet emerging needs. The Superintendents’ Council will annually review and
make service and program recommendations. As required, Lane ESD and component
districts will follow the formal annual approval process for the Local Service Plan.

Withdrawal from Lane ESD
In 2013 amendments to ORS 260.432 and 334.105 expanded the option for component school
districts to withdraw from local ESD’s state-wide beginning in 2014-15.

To support partnerships within Lane County, Lane ESD's goal is to continue 1o collaborate and
partner with any school district that may withdraw from the ESD. Districts that withdraw from
services will:

¢ Beinvited to attend job-alike meetings, including: Superintendents’ Council, Special
Education Directors, Lane County Technology Advisory Committee, Curriculum Leaders
meetings, and any other meetings that are supportive of services and programs
county-wide

¢ Continue as a member of the Life Skills Consortium and other consortium/collaborative
program services

e Continue as a member of consorfium grants, CTE/Perkins, and Title program
collaborations

e Continue to participate in county-wide school improvement efforts

» Be able to purchase ESD menu and custom services

Potential Changes in Funding
The 2021-23 Local Service Plan continues to provide districts with the flexibility fo access Core
Services and annually select the amount of services needed to meet individual districts needs

Page 8



LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

and the option to develop unique services where feasible. Should there be reductions to Lane
ESD’s revenue as aresult of legislative action which reduces the funding ratio for ESD's or the
overall K-12 budget allocation, there will be a proportionate reduction in Flex Funds available
to districts. The ESD will use the March estimate from ODE as the basis for the Flex Fund
Allocation.

When overall economic conditions result in the reduction to Lane ESD’s formula revenue, Lane
ESD will make every attempt to respond with corresponding expenditure reductions or
otherwise offset the revenue loss in a manner that minimizes further impact to component
districts.

Grant funding is also used to support Lane ESD and component district programs and services.
Lane ESD has been successful in securing a number of grants and Innovation grants. The
availability of such grants to support future endeavors is uncertain.

Services funded via contracts or grants are not subject to the 90% expenditure requirement.

Process for Selecting Lane ESD Menu Services & Service Levels

Districts select the specific Lane ESD services and service levels from the service menu by mid-
March of each year. Requests for services are placed using the Lane ESD Service Order Form,
Districts’ available funds and the costs for services are listed on the Lane ESD Service Order

Form.

Core Service - Decision Making
Specific services and associated funding levels included in Core Services are agreed upon by
the Lane County Superintendents’ Council.

District Feedback

Lane ESD routinely surveys key district contacts to understand use of current services, assess
the quality of services, suggestions for improvement, and interest in new services. The most
recent survey of districts was completed in October 2018 and generally affirmed a high level
of satisfaction as well as specific areas for follow up orimprovement.

Additionally, the ESD periodically will conduct an in depth service review focusing on one
particular service area or program. Service reviews are completed by a committee who
works with the ESD to identify the scope of the review and makes recommendations to the
Superintendents’ Council.

Changing Services Included in Core Services

Core Services change or evolve based on recommendation of the ESD in response to analysis
of county-wide needs or interests of component districts. In both cases the proposed change
is analyzed and approved by the Superintendents’ Council.

Timelines

Proposals that require significant change, such as the establishment of new programs,
expansion of specialized services, or increase in fiscal resources allocated to Core Services,
should be presented as early as possible, and no later than the Superintendents' Council

Page ¢



LANE
| ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

meeting in October. This timeline allows the Superintendents' Council time to determine if the
proposal should move forward to formal feasibility assessment by the ESD. The
Superintendents' Council may establish a subcommittee to review feasibility information and
make final recommendations regarding proposals. Subcommittee recommendations and
feasibility assessment will be presented to the full Superintendents’ Council.

Exceptions to the timeline are made for proposals that do not require additional fiscal
resources or re-staffing, as long as the proposal is supported by the Superintendents’ Council.

Approved proposals that involve more complex changes (hiring of specialized staff,
implementation of new programs) may be implemented either as a pilot or as a general
change to Core Services.

When changes are implemented as a pilot, a subcommittee of superintendents will be asked
to assist in the development of criteria to use in assessing the pilot and recommendations on
whether changes should be incorporated into the Core Services. If a pilot is successful, but is
not approved to be included in Core Services it may be offered as a service menu item or
custom service.

Innovation/Projects

Proposals for Innovation/Projects may be developed by the Lane County Curriculum Leaders,
Lane County Technology Advisory Committee (LCTAC), Special Education Directors, Lane ESD
Leadership, or the Superintendents’ Council.

innovation/Project proposals should focus on priorities identified by the Superintendents'’
Council. It is recommended that proposals outline the specific outcomes for the project, the
time frame for implementation, and budget requirements. Lane ESD adminisirators and
component district staff will assist with feasibility aspects of the proposal.

Proposals for accessing Innovation Funds are approved annually by Superintendents’ Council
prior to March 30 to provide adequate planning time and effective implementation of the
project in the next school year.

For 2021-23, the Superintendents’ Council approved the use of Innovation/Projects Funds
available from the Local Service Plan to fund Research for Better Teaching (RBT) licensing and
trainer of trainer licensing. Funding was also set aside for targeted professional development
as determined by the Superintendents' Council which includes specific criteria and
application process.

Student Behavior Assistance Fund

In the past few years a critical need has emerged fo address the needs of students with
intense behaviors. The Student Behavior Assistance Fund is created to provide resources to
address this problem through enhancing prevention, connecting students and families fo
appropriate health providers, and other methods fo improve student behavior and reduce the
number of intense behavioral incidents that schools are experiencing. We believe the most
immediate need is for proper training of school staff so that they are able to de-escalate
students and effectively handle situations “in the moment.”

Page 10



LANE
_ KESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

High Cost Pool

The High Cost Pool will be funded at a level decided upon by the Superintendents’ Council,
based on the final State School Fund amount. Access to the High Cost Pool is based on
disproportionate Special Education enroliment for districts excluding Eugene 4J, Springdfield,
and Bethel.

Connected Lane County
Superintendents contribute funding towards the activities and infrastructure of Connected

Lane County. This commitment is renewed annually.

Promise Programs
Promise Programs will be funded at a level decided by the Superintendents’ Council, based
on the State School Fund amount.

Menu Services — Decision Making

Adding Services to the Menu

A Menu Service offering may change or evolve based on recommendations of the ESD in
response to analysis of county-wide needs or interests of component districts. In both cases,
the proposed change is analyzed and approved by the Superintendents' Council.

Timelines

Proposed changes that require establishment of new programs, expansion of specialist
services, or an increase in fiscal resources allocated to Core Services should be presented no
later than the Superintendents’ Council meeting in October so that the Superintendents’
Council can determine if the proposal should move forward to formal feasibility assessment by
Lane ESD. Timelines for completing the feasibility assessment will be set jointly by the ESD and
the Superintendents' Council.

Proposails that come forward later in the planning process and that do not require complex
program development and are supported by the Superintendents’ Council will be placed on
the menu if there is feasible interest to cover the costs of the service. The following services
are under consideration as menu options: nursing, communication (PIO), legal.

In some cases, proposals may be implemented as a pilot as described below.

Elimination of Service

There may be instances where specific services are discontinued if component districts’ orders
and associated fiscal support are not adequate to continue the service. The decision to
eliminate a service will be made by Lane ESD in consultation with component district
superintendents, taking into consideration the implications for the impacted districts and the
ESD’s fiscal and personnel constraints.

Establishing Pilot/Custom Services
There may be instances where services are added if there is sufficient district interest and

Page 11



LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

associated fiscal resources to cover start up and implementation costs. Districts that have an
identified need not cumrently available on the service menu may request that the ESD develop
a custom service to meet the district’s unique need. The district and the ESD will identify the
nature and scope of the service need. This information is used to estimate costs of providing
the service. If the district and ESD agree that it is feasible and cost effective to establish the
service, it will be implemented either as a pilot or on-going service.

If implemented as a pilot, the ESD and district will establish criteria for assessing the results of
the pilot. All Lane County superintendents will be informed regarding new custom services
offerings and options for participating, as well as information gleaned from the pilot(s).
Previous custom/pilot services included: Network Engineer service, Technology Technician.
Twelve custom/pilot services proposals for 2021-23 are being explored to determine feasibility
and will be reviewed by the Superintendents’ Council.

Service Flexibility
Offerings on the “Menu of Services” are available to all component districts.

Service Implications
A flexible Menu of Services is key to ensuring the Lane ESD Local Service Plan continues to
meet the needs of component districts.

The level of annual flexibility is dependent upon numerous factors and considerations for both
the districts and Lane ESD.

For example, some services require a significant investment of resources on the part of the ESD
and districts to develop a viable infrastructure and sustainable staffing.  As a result, starting,
ending or significantly changing these services require more analysis and review.

There are other services, however, that can be more flexible from year to year, making annual
adjustments in services and service levels easier to accomplish.

Page 12



LANE
7~ 90 ) LocalService Plan 2021-23
£SD

Menu of Services

Current Menu

Below is the Menu of Services for 2021-23. The Menu of Services includes Core Services
provided to all districts without the need to order and services that are offered based on
district selection. Core Services are indicated by an asterisk (*).

The Menu of Services below does not include services provided via grants or services ESD's are
mandated to provide.

2021-23 Menu of Services

Services to Students with Special Needs
Life Skills ESD and Consortium Placements
Lane School {Special School) Behavior Disorder Placements
Behavior/Autism Spectrum Disorder Consortium Placements
Behavior Disorders — Teacher or Consultant
MLK Jr. Education Center
School Psychologist Services
Speech & Language Pathologist
Augmentative Communication
Sigh Language Interpretation Services
Direction Service
Custom Services

School Improvement Services
General Education*
Career & Technical Education
Connected Lane County
Tragedy Response
Custom Services

Technology Services
Infrastructural Technology Services*
Learn 340
Custom Services

Administrative Services
Aftendance Truancy
Business Services
Courier Services
Librarian Services
Substitute Teacher List Subscription
Custom Services

Page 13



LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Funding Sources
A brief explanation of the various funding sources and parameters for the services provided
within this Local Service Plan is below.

State School Fund (SSF) Revenue

Lane ESD’s primary revenue source for services to districts is the State School Fund (SSF). Lane
ESD's share of SSF is based on the overall allocation of SSFs to all Lane County Districts. ESDs
receive 4.5% of the total SSF allocated for their region.

The percentages and formulas for SSF allocations for districts and Oregon ESDs are set by the
Oregon Legislature and are subject fo change. Changes in ESD funding allocations have a
direct impact on Lane ESD's Core and Flex Fund Model allocations to component districts,
ond will impact services and service levels.

ORS 334.177 requires that at least ninety percent (90%) of all ESD revenues from the State
School Fund (SSF) and other funds considered local revenues be spent on the provision of
services approved in the Local Service Plan. The remaining ten percent (10%) may be
expended on administrative services.

The 10% administrative services allocation is an essential component to providing services to
districts. The cost of facilities, accounting, human resources, technology, and general
administrative overhead (insurance, legal fees, etc.) are paid for with these funds. Home
School services and grant development services are also included in the 10% administrative
services aliocation.

Menu of Services Funding

ltems on the Menu of Services are available to all districts based on their annual selection. The
cost of services ordered from the menu are charged to the district’'s Flex Fund allocation
and/or invoiced to the district if in excess of available Flex Funds.

Other Services
Lane ESD also provides services by way of contracts with component districts or other public or
private entities.

Grants

Lane ESD actively seeks grant funding to enhance services to districts and further ESD and
component district priorities.

Page 14



LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Programs Included in 10% Adminisirative Revenue

Home Schooling

Oregon ESD's are mandated to provide Home School services. Lane ESD is responsible for
accepting nofification from parents or guardians who intend to educate their children at
home. Lane ESD serves as a primary information resource to parents, students, schools, and

districts.
Lane ESD is responsible for:
¢ monitoring compliance with home school notification and testing requirements;

¢ monitoring academic progress requirements;
e providing detadiled reports to districts including compliance and testing information.

Grant Development

Lane ESD recognizes the importance of outside funding in shaping the future of education in
Lane County. Lane ESD employs a grant writer to support acquisition of grant resources to
enhance services in alignment with ESD and component district priorities.

Page 15



LANE
| ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Federal & State Mandates for Oregon ESDs

Lane ESD's services align with the services prescribed for every Oregon Education Service District in ORS
334.175(2} as follows:

Services to Children with Special Needs
Programs for children with special needs, including but not limited to:

e Special Education

e Alrisk Students

¢ Professional development for employees who provide those services
School Improvement Services

School Improvement Services for component school districts, including but not limited to:
e Meeting the requirements of state and federal law

e Services designed to allow the ESD fo participate in and facilitate a review of state and federal
standards related to the provision of a quality education

e Support and facilitate continuous improvement planning

¢ Support for school-wide behavior and climate issues

e Professional Technical education

s Professional development for employees who provide those services

Technology Services

Technology Support for component school districts and the individual technology plans of those districts,
including but not limited to:

¢ Technology infrastructure services
¢ Data services and distance learning
e Professional development for employees who provide those services.
Administrative Support Services
Administrative and Support Services for component school districts, including but not limited to:
s Services designed to consolidate component school district business functions.
¢ Licison services between ODE and component districts

s Registration of children being taught by private teachers, parents or legal guardians pursuant to ORS
339.035

Other Services
Other Services that ESDs are required to provide by state or federal law, including but not limited to:
e Compulsory Attendance required under ORS 339.005 to 339.090.

Performance Measures
In addition to providing these “core” services, Lane ESD's services must also be equitable, cost effective, of
high quality and meet local district needs.  Services must also be evaluated using the following
performance measures:

e Improving student learning

s Enhoncing the qudlity of education for all students

e Providing quality professional development for district staff

¢ Providing districts and their students equitable access to resources

s  Maximizing operational efficiencies and providing economies of scale

Page 16



LANE
(ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Services to Children with Special Needs
Life Skills Consortium Services

Service Lane ESD’s and district-operated Life Skills programs form a consortium to serve students with
Description moderate, severe, and profound intellectual disabilities as part of a continuum of services.

Classrooms for sfudents in kindergarten through grade 12 are located in a number of elementary,
middle and high schools throughout Lane County. Students
ages 19-21 are served in "“Transition Classrooms”.

The Life Skills Consortium includes all sixteen districts, with
Bethel, Eugene, Junction City, Springfield and Lane ESD as
service providers. The Life Skills Consortium Agreement
describes the common unit cost determined annually, resident
and serving district responsibilities, the process for resolution of
concerns, and Lane ESD’s responsibility for the coordination of
placements.

Kindergarten to Grade 12

» Highly individuadlized instruction in functional academics,
daily living skills, and social/communication skills

e Inclusion support
* Secondary students also receive instruction in vocational skills and community accessibility.

Intensive Services Class

¢ This classroom serves secondary students whose support needs require environmental
modifications that may not be feasible on a general education campus.

Transition Classes
e Students learn independent living skills to help transition to adulthood.

s Students explore community options such as public transportation, leisure and recreation, and
employment opportunities.

Assist component districts in meeting the requirements of IDEA and Oregon Administrative

Rules.

¢ Implement evidence-based practices in the education of students with moderate, severe and
profound intellectual disabilities to improve student learning.

» Enable component districts and the students they serve fo have equitable access o resources
in Special Education.

*  Maximize operational and fiscal efficiencies for component districts in the area of Special

Education.

Goals

Budget The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service orders for the
service.

Page 17



LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Services to Children with Special Needs

Behavior Disorder Services

Service Lane ESD assists districts in meeting the federal requirement to provide a continuum of services for
Description students with the most challenging behaviors.
Lane School
Lane Schoolis a structured behavior and academic program designed for students in
kindergarten through grade 8 who experience significant behavioral, social, and academic
difficulties.
Lane Schoolis located at the Lane ESD Westmoreland Campus. Services are designed to help
students gain the skills needed to be successful in their home school. Students are referred by their
resident district and typically attend Lane School for approximately 18 months before transitioning
back to their home school.
Goals ¢  Assist component districts in meeting the
requirements of IDEA and Oregon Administrative
Rules.
s Implement evidence-based practices in the
education of students with behavioral/emotional
disabilities to improve student learning.
e Assist districts with targeted interventions addressing
the needs of students with behavioral/emotional
disabilities.
e Enable component districts and the students they
serve 1o have equitable access to resources in
Special Education.
e Maximize operational and fiscal efficiencies for component districts in the area of Special
Education.
Budget » The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service orders for
the service,

Page 18



LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Services to Children with Special Needs
Behavior Disorder -Consuitants

Service Behavior Disorder Consultants provide in-service training/consultation to districts for
. behavior/classroom management, and strategies for working with students identified as having
Description  emotional/behavioral disabiities.

Goals e Assist component school districts in meeting the requirements of state and federal laws for
IDEA and enhance the quality of education provided to special education and at-risk
students.

¢ Improve student learning in special education and in at-fisk youth by providing consultation to
district personnel and provide professional development to component district employees in
the area of special education services to at-risk youth.

¢ Enable component school districts and the students they serve to have equitable access to
resources in special education.

« Maximize operational and fiscal efficiencies for component school districts in the area of
special education and services to at-risk youth.

Budget The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service orders for the
service.

Martin Luther King, Jr. Education Center

Service Martin Luther King, Jr. Education Center is a collaboration between Lane ESD and the
Description Department of Youth Services (DYS) to provide educational services to adjudicated youth in

middle and high school. The program is located at the Serbu Juvenile Justice Center. The
program is funded by district-paid tuition for students enrolled in Credit Recovery and GED
services and is augmented by DYS Juvenile Crime Prevention funds, Juvenile Accountability
Block Grant funds and Video Lottery which funds Job Skills/Life Skills services.

Assist component school districts in meeting the requirements of state and federal laws for

IDEA and enhance the quality of education provided to special education and at-risk

students.

s Enable component school districts and the students they serve to have equitable access to
resources targeting at risk youth.

»  Maximize operational and fiscal efficiencies for component school districts in the area of

special education and at-risk youth.

Goals

Budget The annual budget allocation for this service is based on anficipated student enroliment.

Page 19



LANE

ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Services to Children with Special Needs

School Psychology Services

Service
Description

Goals

Budget

School psychologists are utilized in a variety of ways based on the needs of component districts.
School Psychology services might include:

Psycho-educational assessments provided to assist districts in defermining student eligibility

for special education.
e Development and monitoring of student behavior support plans.
s Consultation with school staff and parents on behavioral and educational concerns.

s Service coordination assistance to district staff, parents and other professionals to ensure
student success.

Assist component school districts in meeting the requirements of state and federal laws for
IDEA.

Enhance the quality of education provided to special education and at-isk students by
providing timely and comprehensive psycho-educational evaluations that assist districts in
determining eligibility for Special Education Services.

Improve student learning in special education for at-risk youth by providing consultation fo
district personnel.

Provide professional development to component district employees in the area of special
education and at-risk youth.

Enable component school districts and the students they serve 1o have equitable access to
resources in special education.

Maximize operational and fiscal efficiencies for component school districts in the area of
special education and at-risk youth.

The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service orders for the
service.

Page 20



LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Services to Children with Special Needs

Speech Services

Service Speech Services are offered to support districts in assessing and providing Individualized Education
Description Plan (IEP) related services to identified students.

Goals e  Assist component school districts in meeting the requirements of state and federal laws for
IDEA and enhance the quality of education provided to special education.

* Improve student learning in special education by providing consultation to district personnel
and provide professional development fo component district employees in the area of special
education.

e Enable component school districts and the students they serve to have equitable access to
resources in special education.

o Maximize operational and fiscal efficiencies for component school districts in the area of
special education.

Budget The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service orders for the
service.

Augmentative Communication

Service Augmentative Communication Services are designed to work in parinership with school speech
Description and language therapists and other team members. Augmentative Communication Specialists

assist in identifying, evaluating and providing intervention for students with severe communication
disorders who would benefit from augmentative communication. Augmentative communication
includes all forms of communication, other than oral speech, that are used to express needs,
wants and ideas.

Assist component school districts in meeting the requirements of state and federal laws for
IDEA and enhance the quality of education provided to special education.

+ Improve student leaming in special education by providing consultation to district personnel
and provide professional development to component district employees in the area of special
education.

+ Enable component school districts and the students they serve to have equitable access to
resources in special education.

¢  Maximize operational and fiscal efficiencies for component school districts in the area of
special education.

Goals

Budget The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service orders for the
service.

Page 21



LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Services to Children with Special Needs

Sign Language Interpreting Service
Service Sign Language Interpretation services are offered to support districts in providing Individualized

Description Education Plan {IEP) supports to students, and ADA related services to students, staff, and families.
Goal s  Assist component school districts in meeting the requirements of state and federal laws for
IDEA and provide equitable communication access for students who are deaf and hard of
hearing or who have other identified auditory processing disorders.
e Assist component school districts in meeting the requirements of state and federal laws under
ADA by providing sign language interpretation for employees and families as needed.
e Enable component school districts and the students they serve to have equitable access to
resources in special education.
e Maximize operational and fiscal efficiencies for component school districts in the area of
special education.
®
Budget The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts' annual service orders for this

service.

Direction Service

Service Direction Service, a local non-profit agency, provides information and refemral services to parents
Description and districts regarding specialized services available in Lane County for students and families of

students with disabilities. Direction Service also acts as a mediator between districts and parents of
children with disabilities and focuses on collaborative dispute resolution. Lane ESD contracts with
Direction Service on behalf of subscribing component districts.

Goal + Provide districts and parents of students with special needs access to cost effective referral
and mediation services.
Budget The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service orders for the
service.

Page 22



LANE
( ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

2021-23 Grant and Contract Services

Early Intervention/Early Childhood Special Education

Lane ESD sub-contracts with the University of Oregon (EC Cares} to provide administration and
coordination of services to all eligible preschool children with disabilities and their families in the
service areaq.

Lane Regional Program

Lane Regional Low Incidence Program provides Special Education services for children who have
low-incidence disabilities, including; Visual Impairments, Hearing Impairments, Deaf/Blindness, Severe
Orthopedic Impairment, Autism Spectrum Disorder and Traumatic Brain injury.

State Hospital
Lane ESD provides educational services to 18-21 year old students who are hospitalized for either
shori-ferm or long-term care.

Juvenile Defention Education Program
Lane ESD provides educational services to youth in the Serbu Juvenile Detention Center.

Phoenix Treatment Program
Lane ESD provides educational services to youth in the Phoenix Treatment Program at Serbu Juvenile
Detention Center.

System Performance Review & improvement (SPR&I)
SPR&I sub grant awards assist with annual performance data collection and reporting for special
education.

Extended Assessment
Supports training and professional development around the statewide assessment of students with
disabilities.

IDEA Enhancement
Supporting enhancement of activities for students with disabilities in the areas of Response to
Intervention (RTl), Positive Behavior Support (PBS). expanded SPR&I, and determination issues.

Employment Support Facilitator

The position supports the implementation of Youth Transition Programs {YTP) designed to meet the
needs of students enrolled in the Life Skills Transition program. The Employment Support Facilitator
coordinates with the Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) office, Oregon Developmental Disability Services
{ODDS), and local County Service Coordinators to provide services to eligible students.

Page 23




LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Services in School Improvement

Service Instruction

Description  General Education/Instruction Services include leadership and professional development to assist
districts in implementing research-based instructional practices that address content standards to
ensure a quality education for all students. Component districts have prioritized supporting and
improving instruction. Since 2014 Lane ESD and component districts have invested in
implementing a strong instructional framework that is supported by 1) the Research for Better
Teaching/Studying Skillful Teacher trainings for classroom teachers and adminisirators and 2)
content and standards-based professional development. In addition for 2016-18, the
Superintendents’ Council has identified a priority for integrating culturally sustaining instructional
practices in all content areas, including supporting districts in developing awareness and basic
understanding of the continuum of eguitable education practices in schools.

Content specialists provide professional development, consultation, and coaching to teachers in
curiculum, instruction, and assessment. Lane ESD has content specialists in the areas of English
Language Arts, Math, Science, and Career Technical Education.

Services support the implementation of evidence-based practices within all programs to eliminate
opportunity and achievement gaps for all underserved or historically underserved students and
build upon the assets of each student and family.

Professional Development

Content specialists coordinate and provide professional development for district staff county-wide
at Lane ESD or at the district or classroom level. Professional development is intended to improve
high quality instruction, and includes the alignment of content standards and instructional
strategies, student data analysis and the use of performance based assessments.

Consultation/Coaching

Content specidlists and staff work with districts to review and adopt curriculum materials, analyze
achievement and discipline/attendance data, review evidence-based practices, model and plan
implementation strategies.

Learning Resources

Lane ESD provides an array of materials for Lane County public school educators, including over
200 hands-on educational modeis and kits and textbooks for review. Support is provided for
textbook review and cumriculum adoption.

Equity

While Lane ESD is focused on identifying and addressing barriers to equity and access for all
students, many equity issues exist in our schools, community, and college/university. Lane ESD and
component districts are committed to improving educational outcomes for culturally and
linguistically diverse students, students navigating poverty, and student with disabilities. This requires
strong collaborative efforts and determination from the ESD and partner organizations to develop
and invest in inifiatives across Lane County which will systemically eliminate opportunity gaps.
improve and expand access to services and supports, and build upon the assets of each student
and family.

Lane ESD is a member of the Equity and Community Consortium {representatives from 13
Eugene/Springfield area public agencies collaborating on equity and human rights issues). Lane
ESD collaborates with equity and community organizations such as NAACP, Blacks In Government
{BIG), Centro Latino Americano and Connected Lane County member organizations to strengthen
expand and integrate our efforts to address equity issues in our community. Collaborative efforts

Page 24



LANE
{ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

may include active participation in grants, initiatives, and community-based activities.

Cunent priorities are using culturally sustaining instructional practices for the implementation of
professional development and supporting the development and enhancement of teacher
pathways programs for diverse students interested in the field of education.

Partnerships

Lane ESD is active in state-wide, regional and community partnership to further the identified
instructional improvement goals of component districts. Lane ESD is @ member of the ODE-OAESD
Program Cabinet whose goal is to support effective communication and implementation of ODE
initiatives. In addition Lane ESD serves as the backbone organization for the Regional
Achievement Collaborative {Connected Lane County) and the STEM Hub (Lane STEM).

The ESD regularly submits grants on behalf of a consortium of districts, including community and
business partners.

Goals The godls of the School Improvement service area align with Lane ESD’s Strategic Plan, specifically:
e Create and implement innovative initiatives that directly influence student success
e Supponring best instructional practices
¢ Modeling and promoting equitable practice for all

Budget For 2021-23 School Improvement Services are fully funded and available to all districts. Districts do
not need to order the service or use their Flex Fund allocation to cover the cost of the service.

Page 25



LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Services in School Improvement

Career & Technical Education

Service Career and Technical Education (CTE) staff provides leadership and services to districts for students

Description to enhance 215t century technical skills, career exploration. and successful transition to work or
extended schooling.

LESD Specialists and staff provides technical assistance to instructors, counselors, and
administrators on:

+ innovative cumiculum;

e employment preparation;

¢ alignment with secondary graduation
requirements;

e services to reduce duplication given
limited resources.

Partnerships with Colleges & Districts

CTE Specialists and staff facilitate partnerships
between area colleges and districts o address
alternative learning options for students to obtain
college and/or high school credit.

Career Counseling and Guidance
Staff works to enhance community and college partnerships for career exploration, workplace
readiness, and technical skill development.

Goals s Provide professionai development o instructors on Career and Technical Education program
design, cumiculum and assessment.

s Facilitate high school and post-secondary parinerships to support student transitions fo colege
and career opportunities.

e Develop business and community partnerships at local, regional and national levels to
enhance learning opportunities for students.

¢ Connect Career and Technical Education programs with businesses through sponsocring and
coordinating regional events that provide students with career-related experiences.

Budgeft The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service orders for the
service.

Page 26



LANE
ﬁ ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Connected Lane County

Service Connected Lane County (RAC) is the evolution of an early collaborative called the
Description Education Partnership established in 2010. The Education Partnership was an outcome of

a long-held goal of Lane Community College President Mary Spilde and was initially
based on the Mid-Valley Partnership sponsored by Oregon State University. This Lane
County K-16 codlition was made up of the superintendents and presidents of local school
districts, Lane CC, and UOQ. The initial purpose of the coalition was to share information
increase cooperation and support Lane County students in their education transition by:
identifying shared strengths, issues, and concerns across education institutions;
addressing barriers to equity and accessibility for all students; exploring opportunities for
cooperation; discovering resources to benefit partners; and utilizing the resources and
inspiration of Lane CC and the UO to support aspirations for higher education for ali Lane
County students.

Connected Lane County partners share information, increase cooperation, and aid students
in their education fransitions by identifying shared strengths, issues and concems; identifying
and addressing systemic barriers that harm equity and accessibility for all students; exploring
opportunities for cooperation; and identifying resources that can benefit partners such as
grants, donations, knowledge and experience.

Goals ¢ Increase the number of local high school graduates who are successful in higher
education and life by creating a seamless and streamlined transition between early
childhood, K-12 and higher education through partnerships and relationships with
educational, community, and business partner organizations.

o Create pathways for all students to enter kindergarten ready to learn and be
prepared for higher education or careers.

s  Build programs and work utilizing an equity lens that ensures cultural
appropriateness.

Budget For 2021-23 funding to support CLC includes partner dues, Oregon Department of
Education/Chief Education Office Regional Achievement Collaboratives grants, and
Superintendents’ Council Core Services funding.

Tragedy Response
Service Lane ESD coordinates annual training for district tragedy response team members on
behalf of subscribing districts.

Description
Goals e Provide districts with cost effective training.
¢« Maximize operational efficiencies for component school districts in maintaining a
county-wide Tragedy Reponses Network.
Budget The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service

orders for the service.

Page 27



LANE
ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Lane ESD Student Success Act Comprehensive Support Plan’

Service The 2020 Lane ESD Student Investment Act (SIA) Plan is designed to support districts in

Description meeting students’ mental or behavioral health needs, and increasing academic
achievement for students, including reducing academic disparities for students navigating

poverty, homelessness, and/or foster care, students from racial or ethnic groups that have

historically experienced academic disparities, students with disabilities, and students who

are English language learners.

Lane ESD will engage districts in quarterly continuous improvement self-monitoring
routines, helping to align the outcomes, strategies, and activities of the Student Investment
Account, Continuous Improvement Plan, High School Success Plan, and Career Technical
Education. Additionally, Lane ESD will host programming that empowers youth, families,
and community members representative of the four focal groups o inform county and
district inifiatives; establish and support networked learning communities fo support
academic success, social emotional well-being, community engagement, district
capacity, and overall school and community climate; and partner with districts to provide
educators and administrators high quality professional learning that supports culturally
responsive-sustaining teaching and trauma-informed, restorative leadership.

1. See appendix

Page 28



LANE
ES’) Local Service Plan 2021-23

2021-23 Grant and Contract Services

Carl Perkins Consortium Services

Lane ESD manages and supports quality Career Technical Education programs and services.
Programs of Study articulate with Lane Community College Career Pathways and are based on
industry needs. All districts with CTE Programs of Study are included.

Advanced Manufacturing and Construction
This grant provides support for a regional advisory committee and indusiry connections to strengthen
the quality of CTE Programs of Study. This grant also sponsors the Construction Utility Career Day.

Apprenticeship Trades Academy
Through this grant, Lane ESD is able to provide opportunities for students to experience pre-
apprenticeships using local Training Centers.

Connected Lane County/Regional Achievement Collaborative

Lane ESD serves as the fiscal agent on behalf of Connected Lane County/Regional Achievement
Collaborative, which was selected as one of 11 regional partnerships across the state of Oregon to
receive Regional Achievement Collaborative grants. Connected Lane County was chosen based
on the depth of its partnerships, commitment to the success of students from pre-natal to age 22 (P-
22), and the potential for implementing innovating and effective projects. Because of the depth
and breadth of partnerships already developed since educational partners in Lane County partners
first came together to work on K-12/higher education outcomes in 2010. Previously, Connected Lane
County/RAC was chosen by the OEIB to serve as a mentor and leader to other Regional
Achievement Collaboratives.

Lane African American Black Student Success

The African American/Black Student Success Program improves academic outcomes for African
American/Black students to achieve a vision of an equitable education system in Lane County. The
project promotes regular and consistent school attendance, provides students access to culturally
responsive teaching and learning supports which confribute to their academic success from early
learning to post-secondary, provides rigorous skill enhancement and leadership advocacy
programs, and provides students and their families support in navigating educational processes and
opportunities.

Lane Regional Promise

The overarching purpose of Lane Regional Promise is to foster a college going and career culture
that guarantees well-designed opportunities for students to earn credit in college level courses and
meaningful career exploration experiences that will set them on a path to a successful post-
secondary future.

Lane STEM (Hub)

Lane County education, business and community partners submitted a STEM Hub grant proposal to
the Oregon Department of Education in December 2015, Lane STEM (Hub} received a 16-month
planning grant award in February 2016 and in December 2016 received a program grant award.
Lane ESD serves as the backbone organization for the Lane County STEM Hub. Lane STEM
coordinates, promotes and supports STEM education in Lane County by integrating science,
technology, engineering, and math in the classroom and beyond. The STEM Hub provides teachers
in Lane Couniy with connections to STEM professionals (engineers, scientists, technicians, and
analysts) and offers resources for Lane County educators, industry professionals, families, and
community members. The vision of Lane STEM is to1) ignite student interest in, and fuel preparation
for, STEM careers; 2) create a STEM-literate citizenry well-positioned to make sound decisions and

Page 29




LANE
.' ES’) Local Service Plan 2021-23

participate in community STEM-related discourse; 3) foster a diversity of confident educators and
students applying and innovating with STEM concepts.

Migrant Education - Title IC

Lane ESD coordinates a regional Migrant Education Program consortium serving Lane and Douglas
counties including 29 school districts, MEP services provide supplemental instruction, community
outreach and parent involvement for eligible MEP students including summer school and pre-school.

Mulii-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) Regional Coaching

The focus of the Oregon Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) project is the implementation of a
cohesive evidence-based professional development and coaching network to support the
implementation of MTSS for academics and behavior. Through integrated supports, Oregon has a
statewide network of high quality coaches, and is increasing the number of districts implementing
MTSS with fidelity, ullimately increasing student outcomes for students with disabilities.

English Language Learners - Title Ill
ELL services include technical assistance and training on ESL curriculum alignment and integrating
English Language Proficiency standards into the regular curiculum.

Curriculum Directors and Rural School Network

This network composed of district and building administrators from all 16 component districts A major
component of this network is creating differentiated ways for districts to collaborate with each other
and share resources and best practices. This work is based on the Oregon Equity Lens, and other
State-led initiatives including but not limited to the Student Success Act.

Western Regional Educator Network (WREN)

The Western REN is an educator-led, improvement-focused network that elevates and embraces
teachers' voice by emphasizing the Equity Lens to interrupt historical patterns of inequities and
support educators through every stage of their career from recruitment through retirement by
creating more inclusive and empowering school cultures. In 2017, Oregon Legislature passed Senate
Bill 182 which created the Educator Advancement Council (EAC]. an innovative public/necnprofit
partnership designed to support public educators. Through this bill. the EAC was charged with the
task of creating local educator networks. These fen networks or “Regional Educator Networks™ {REN)
are designed to create a seamless system through three major vehicles: teacher voice, an equity
lens, and a continuous improvement model.

Our Regional Educator Network (Region C), called the Western Regional Educator Network (WREN),
encompasses twenty-eight school districts spanning the Lane ESD and Linn-Benton-Lincoln ESD
Region.

Youth Transition Program

The Youth Transition Program is a collaboration between the Vocational Rehabilitation Division,
Oregon Department of Education, University of Oregon. Lane County school districts, and Career
Learning. The program serves students on Individual Education Plans {IEPs}, providing assistance with
academic, vocational, independent living and personal-social skills so students can experience
success in the workforce.

Page 30




LANE

(f’_:SD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Technology Services

Infrastructural Technology

Service
Description

Goals

Budget

Lane ESD offers component districts a variety of fechnology services to support
student learning and staff productivity. In small districts technology supports focus on
escalated response needs and interaction with contracted service providers; in large
districts services are project-based with a specified allocation of service hours,
augmenting district technology expertise. Lane ESD technology offerings include:

e Managed network connectivity, including CIPA compliant filtering, and intrusion
protection;

e Coordination and engineering support to district initiatives, including securing
new implementations;

e Hosted services, e.g. email, web, and library services;

e Professional development to district technology support staff;

e Network engineering and support in the desigh of districts’ infrastructures, with an
emphasis on securing infrastructure;

e Assistance in the writing, coordination, and implementation of grant activities
related to technology infrastructures, including assistance with the filing of eRate;

¢ Internship hiring and placement for college students into an education
technology environment;

¢ Enhance the current network infrastructure to support scalable instructional
needs of the component districts, including systems for the effective utilization of
network resources in a secure manner.

¢ Develop internal component district technology infrastructures to support robust
long-range instructional needs, and to ensure staff and student usability, and
security.

2021-23 Technology Services are fully funded and available 1o all districts. Districts
do not need to order the service or use their Flex Fund allocation to cover the cost of
the service.

Page 31



LANE
| ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Technology Services

2021-23 Grant and Contract Services

LCC Contract
LESD Technology functions as the Internet Service Provision (ISP) and remote campus connectivity
for Lane Community College (LCC}. LESD and LCC began a recurring contract in 2005-06 that
provides needed services to LCC and entrepreneurial funding to serve Lane County districts.
Lane County districts have benefited from the LCC relationship and revenue in the following
ways:

e Network core upgrade purchases (e.g. costly core routing systems, firewall)

e« Common wide area network across 14 districts and all LCC sites simplifying instructional

access
e Funding for development and "proof of concept' endeavors in direct support o districts

Page 32




LANE
ES’) Local Service Plan 2021-23

Administrative Services

Business Services
Service Lane ESD's Business Office can provide services to districts on either a short term or annual basis.

Services include:

Description
e Payroll
e Accounts Payable
e Budget Preparation
»  Audit preparation
« Financial reporting and management for grants
e Monthly financial reports to Boards
¢ Financial reporting to the Oregon Department of Education
Goals * Assist component school districts in meeting the requirements of the Oregon Revised Statutes
regarding local budget law and investments, IRS payroll and accounts payabile regulations
and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
+ Improve student learning and enhancing quadlity education by providing accurate budget
information to allow the disiricts to maximize the use of available funds for instructional services.
+ Provide professional development opportunities at the bi-monthly meeting of the Lane County
Business Officials.
» Provide services that allow districts to utilize the ESD's economies of scale and expertise to
reduce their administrative costs.
Budget The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service orders for the

service.

Page 33



LANE

7B D Local Service Plan 2021-23

Administrative Services

Courier Services

Service
Description

Goals

Budget

Lane ESD’s courier services provides an efficient and secure method of moving materials between
the ESD, districts and other public agencies.

o Weekly delivery services to subscribing districts, supporting both inter- and infra-district mail
and instructional materials delivery for component districts

. Secure and confidential delivery of Student Records, including Special Education records

. Pick-up and delivery of instructional materials provided by Lane ESD to component districts
including Media Materials (science kits, models, etc.}, and audience response systems
Movement of specialized equipment for special education classrooms
Customized services to Eugene and Springfield Schools Districts to interface with district
courier.

» Provide cost-effective, fimely, accurate and courteous courier services to all component
school districts.

The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts” annual service orders for the
service.

Librarian Services

Service
Description

Goals

Budget

Lane ESDs Librarian supports districts in meeting Division 22 standards regarding library and media
services.

s Provide training to classified staff assigned to school libraries
e  Assist with culling library collections and selecting materials
e Assist districts in meeting Division 22 standards.

The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service orders for the
service.

Substitute Teacher List Subscription

Service
Description

Goals

Budget

Lane ESD's Substitute Teacher Registration subscription provides an efficient method of ensuring
thot substitute teachers have completed required background checks and annual fraining
reguirements.

e Provision of annual application process fo register new tfeacher substitutes

e Provision and monitoring of annual training requirements

e Completion of annual “intent to return” and usual and customary break petiods notice

o Verification of valid teacher licensure

The annual budget allocation for this service is based on the districts’ annual service orders for the
service.

Page 34



LANE
( ESD Local Service Plan 2021-23

Administrative Services

Aftendance/Truancy Services

Service Lane ESD provides truancy officers to assist districts in returning truant students to the classroom.

Description Assistance is also provided in referring persistent truancy cases to Lane County Juvenile Court,
Services to Children and Families, or citations for failure o maintain a child in school.

This is a state mandated service to districts with less than 1,000 students.

Lane ESD also coordinates the work of Conference Officers on behalf of local districts.

Assist component school districts in meeting the requirements of the Oregon Revised Statutes

regarding mandatory school attendance.

e Improve student learning and enhancing quality education by supporting district efforts to
maintain student attendance and recapture ADM funding.

*  Provide services that allow districts o ufilize the ESD's economies of scale and expertise to

reduce their administrative costs.

Goals

Budget Afttendance/Truancy Services are fee-based.

2021-23 Grant and Contract Services

Inter-Library Courier
Lane ESD provides pick-up and delivery of inter-library loan materials to the Lane County Libraries
consortium.

Substifute Teacher List Subscription
Lane ESD Substitute Teacher List subscription services o private and alternative schools.

ODOT Teens Driving Safely Grant
Supports increasing the number of frained driver education instructors and increasing course
offerings in Lane County.

State Farm Granf
Supports access to ODOT approved Driver Education courses.

Page 35



9¢ abbd

*s9ss3204d Bulny
pUE Uo[EIILIDI YSNnody} s3lepipued Jaldeal 3sIaAIp Jo uopeledasd pue Juswynisas poddng

s# A8ajens

‘seibajed)s JousIp paleys pue (Yyeay [esoineysaq/jejuaw bupioddns pue juswiansiyoe
olwepese Ul sspuedsip Buisold) sanuoud y|S o) paublje eonoeid jo seiUNWWOD ajel|oe

b# ASarens

‘ssao04d Juswanoidw snonunuod Gujofuo ue uf uofedo|e sainosal pue Bupjew-uolsioep
a|qeynba aAup pue quaswabebua Ayunwiwos Aem-om) sjjusyine uoddns ‘uopejuswa)du|
ue[d wuogul 0) ejep pajebalbbesip ‘asJeAlp asn jey) safiunwwod Bujuies| payiomiau 1soH

€4 Adajens

‘suoneziueblio jeanyno eaoj|
0} UO}oUUO0D puE {1ounoy) AJnb3g YInoA Jo uoleulpiood Yybnoay) AlunoD sue-] ul S3910A
UBISY JJI0Bd YINOS PUB ‘UBDUSWY BALJEN ‘XUIJET ‘UBOLBWY UBDLIYAORIE ‘YinoA Ajtdwy

z# ASarens

‘seaii Jusjuod (e Joj Buiuies)
[euoissajoid ssoioe Jusjuoo ABobBepad aaisuodsay Ajjein)nd jJo suolepunod paquil

T# A8ajens

‘diysiapea| 311803534 ‘paluIojul-ewne.) pue Suyoeal SuluieIsns-aaisuodsal Ajjeunynd spoddns
1ey) Sujusea| |euoissajold Ayjenb ySiy o3 ssad0e aney sioleASIUILIPE PUE S101eINPS NS

=111[e 82 14T ]

‘ajew|d Ajunwwod
pue [00yas |{eJano pue ‘Aydeded yulstp awadedus Ayunwiwiod ‘Suiaq ||am jeuonowd
|B120s ‘$5323NS ojWapedk ul SaSURYD SAINSOd YUM paxul| 3¢ UED S3IHUNLLIWGD SUIUIE3] PI)JOMIaN

QW00

‘uoneluawajdun pue Suluueld JuawaA0IdW SNONUIIUOD 1DLSIP WIOJUI O}
pasamodwa aJe sdnosd [e204 1IN0 BY) JO AIRIUISAIADI SIDQIBW AJUNLUWOD pUe ‘S3ljIwe) ‘YINoA

awonng

‘(uswusie 312 ‘SSH ‘dID

aWoNNO

“VIS) SaUIN0J SuoHUOW-§|3s JuatLaAodw] SNONURUO AlJaienb ul a8e8ua s1olsip Auno) aueT

SS

¥S

€S

[4)

1)

ASa3je41S JUeAd|DY

JUNODJY JUSLIISSAUT JUSPNS °1
xjpuaddy

€¢-1¢0¢

UD|d ©DIAISS |00 Q Mllnlu\

ANV




Local Service Plan 2021-23

YEAR 1 BUDGETED COST  PROJECTED 3-VEAR COST
Embed Foundations of Culturally Responsive Pedagogy content across professional learning for all content
Strategy 1 |, eas. $ 155,300.00| $ -
Amplify youth, Black/African American, Latinx, Native American, and South Pacific Asian voices in Lane
Strategy 2  |County through coordination of Youth Equity Council and connection to local cultural organizations. $ 155,300,00| §
Host ked learning ities that use diverse, disaggregated data to inform plan implementation,
pport authentic two-way Inity engagement, and drive equitable decision-making and resource
4 X
Strategy 3 allocation in an ongoing continuous improvement process. g S24.500.00 Jis
Facilitate communities of practice aligned to SIA priarities {closing disparities in academic achievement and
Strategy 4 |supporting mentalfbehavioral health) and shared district strategies. $ 150,100.00 | $ -
Support recruitment and preparation of diverse teacher candidates through certification and hiring
Stfategy 5 processes, $ 95,000.00| $ -
Aligned | o N1 B Year1 Prajected Object
# Activities Primary § | &y | 6udgeted | Three Year "’:
swrategy | S {1 8 Cost .
Hire 1.0 Data Coordinator to support quantitative and qualtiative evaivation
of continuous Improvement process-and activity implementation 33
0DS/Oregon Data Suite: Purchase/Support Data Dashboard System which
provides access to make informed decision for Instruction, student <3

with speciat attention to focal groups

Hire 1.0 bilingual/multicultural Communlty and Family Engagement Liaison to
increase ongolng engagement and partnership with Latink students and $ 98,100.00]
families with attention to identification of SEL/Mental Health needs
Professians! L g for lmpr and N ked Learning [f.e. .
5 Carmegie/NW Region Experts) for ESD and district leaders S 140,000.00

Continue funding of 1.0 Student Success Act Administrator to lead continuous
6 improvement p. SIA plan imp! tation , and networked learning $ 155,700.00
communities A

-III G ..

Hire 1.0 Education Specialist to supp t mental health networked learning
rommunities and communities of practice, with attention to trauma informed
practices, restorative practices, 3nd suicide prevention systems and curriculum

Page 37



Local Service Plan 2021-23

Mire 1.0 Education Specialist to support writing, integration, and
implementation of Foundations for Culturally Responsive Pedagogy

Hire .5 Education Specialist/Instructional coach to support and train districts in
the writing, integration, and implementation of Foundations for Culturally
Responsive Pedagogy content

{implement Train the Trainer and community of practice mode] for Patterns
Sci profi | tearning and curriculum jmplementation. -$ 52,000.00

Partnership with local post-secondary institutions to design and implement a
cammunity of practice for EAs/IAs to learn and implement trauma informed $ 95,000.00
and culturally-respansive instructional strategies. -

Tota! Budget
$ 1,080,200.00

Page 38



Oakridge School District No. 76
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WORK SESSION
December 28, 2020

The meeting of the Board of Directors of Oakridge School District No. 76 was convened at
5:33 p.m. remotely by virtual Zoom webinar connection and called to order by Chair
Weddle.

In addition to the Chair, those present were Vice Chair Hardy, Directors Edmunds, Martin and
McPherson. Also present was Superintendent Doland and Confidential Secretary Jayme Martin
Chair Weddle called the meeting to order at 5:33pm

1. Board Chair Weddle called the meeting into Executive Session pursuant to
ORS 192.660(2)(d) to conduct deliberations with persons designated by the
governing body to carry on labor negotiations at 5:33pm.
Discussion was had regarding the Employee Retirement Memorandum of Agreement
presented by the Oregon Teachers Association. A counter proposal was prepared.
Executive Session ended and regular session resumed at 6:48pm.

2. Policy ACB - All Students Belong (1st Read)
Superintendent Doland shared policy ACB. Cosa and OSBA worked on All Students
Belong. This is a sample policy to make decisions around the language. It is a required
policy. It's purpose is to bring equity into our school district and provide an avenue for
those people or groups that feel there is inequity and a process for them to make a
complaint and for that complaint to be remedied. All students are entitled to a high
quality educational experience free from discrimination or harassment based on
perceived race, color, religion, gender, identity, sexual orientation, disability or national
origin. As this policy specifies, those identifiers of discrimination and harassment based
on perceived identities for students is the only place this language is required to be
added. For employees and visitors, that language is optional. Superintendent Doland
stated that clarity in these policies really do help a lot so she suggested keeping the
same language in for employees and visitors as well. She stated the wording clearly
spells it out so there is not a lot of room for interpretation of what discrimination and
harassment mean. Director McPherson and Vice Chair Hardy stated they liked the
wording also for employees and visitors. Director Martin suggested adding age into the
wording to the employee and visitor line. Superintendent Doland stated we could change
the wording, but there is a strong caution in changing the wording and to consult with
OSBA before we change it. Director McPherson asked if there was another policy that
spoke to the age piece of discrimination. Superintendent Doland stated there is an
employee policy that speaks about the age discrimination. This one really focuses
around equity. She stated she would consult with OSBA for the wording around age
discrimination and bring the update back at the 2" read. Chair Weddle had questions
around the fact that we have control somewhat over what the students and employees
do, but we don’t have a responsibility over the visitors. Superintendent Doland stated
this policy puts in place the complaint process for any discrimination or harassment felt
from a visitor while attending a school function. Ensuring the complaint is followed
through and making efforts that it doesn’t happen again. Director Martin asked about two



visitors that had confrontation. Superintendent Doland stated we would have to do our
due diligence in investigating the matter as best we could following the complaint
process in this policy. Superintendent Doland stated if the policy was to include wording
regarding hate symbols that OSBA would be consulted first about the language. The
draft policy listed the confederate flag and gave a description. Chair Weddle stated a
couple of other symbols that he felt were worse. Director Martin spoke about an incident
that occurred a few years ago regarding students with confederate flags on their
vehicles. Director Edmunds stated the students that were involved in this incident were
not doing it as a racism or hate crime but rather as a rebel demonstration. She stated
that is why she liked the wording because it was more educational instead of a
punishment. Superintendent Doland spoke about the next part being worded on school
grounds instead of district grounds. Discussion was held around whether the district
owned any property that was not one of the schools. It was suggested that the wording
afterwards around any district or school sponsored programs covered all the areas such
as the school bus or softball games held at the Willamette Activity Center. It was
determined the wording on this would be contemplated and readdressed at the 2™ read
of the policy.

Superintendent Doland shared the ACB-AR and said in Step 1 the procedure is not
required but it does have to include all the requirements of the OAR and she felt the
language does just that. She recommended throughout this policy AR that these
incidents be assigned to the building administrator for consistency sake. Director Martin
stated he would like it to read, “all persons impacted and promptly report the incident to
the building administrator who then will also report it to the superintendent without
unreasonable delay.” He sated this would create a backup with the principal being
responsible for reporting it to the superintendent as well. Superintendent Doland asked if
we should change it to, “within 24 hours” for the building principal to report it. Chair
Weddle and Director Martin preferred “without reasonable delay”. Superintendent
Doland explained the next group of wording to be decided upon, saying this complaint
can be given verbally or in writing, but it was important for the administrator to capture it
in writing as soon as they receive it. Director McPherson and Director Martin stated they
would like to see that the complaint be in writing whether from the complainant or if the
administrator writes it up after the verbal statement is given. Director McPherson added
she would like it also stated that the complainant sign the written statement.
Superintendent Doland spoke about the responding staff and what that means. Director
Martin asked about a 3™ party investigator regarding the “responding staff’ wording. He
stated he read it as the person responding to the complaint. He asked if it meant the
staff responding to the actual complaint or a staff member responding to an incident in
their classroom. Superintendent Doland stated this is step 2 of the process, so first the
administrator is going to acknowledge the receipt of the complaint and ensure it is in
writing, and they are going to investigate any complaint of a bias incident. Those
responding to the complaint would be the building administrator. She stated she would
ask OSBA for clarification on the wording. Director Martin said that would be his
question. Would it be the staff involved or the one investigating? Chair Weddle
suggested it might be staff that are responding to the incident right then before the
administrator is even involved. Superintendent Doland spoke about the next wording to
be decided whether it be make a decision or determine responsibility and within a
specified amount of time. Chair Weddle like “make a decision”. Director Martin stated he
liked “determine responsibility” because they were not able to make a decision in 10
days if it were to take an investigation. Superintendent Doland stated depending on the
situation it would be re-teaching and restitution to change the behaviors and actions.



5.

Director McPherson stated in that context she preferred “determine responsibility”. Chair
Weddle stated the issue could be resolved once both parties heard the decision, and it
may not be resolved if they hear that responsibility was placed on them when both could
be at fault. Superintendent Doland stated from a decision standpoint, to conduct the
investigation and determine where the responsibility lie, and there always is
responsibility, that might take 10 days. How we are going to remediate it, might take
more than 10 days. Chair Weddle stated that you don’t want to take too long because
then no one learns from it if it is not solved in a timely manner. Superintendent Doland
stated she would be working with the administrators side by side at some point during
the investigation to determine if other policies or civil rights laws were violated. She said
she believed there would be training regarding these circumstances making sure the
administration are up to date with the information. Director Edmunds stated the
administrators need to do their investigation because if the parties involved do not like
the outcome, their next step would be to go to the superintendent. So each step needs
to be foliowed. Superintendent Doland asked if the Board felt 5 days was sufficient for
the respondent to submit an appeal. Director Edmunds stated she believed that was the
same amount of time in some of the other policies. The next wording decision was
determining when the board would hear the appeal whether it be at the next regular
board meeting or at a board meeting. Director Martin stated he liked the flexibility of “a
board meeting”. Discussion was had regarding adding wording “or a student” was had
for cases where the student is old enough not to require a parent or guardian decisions.
Superintendent Doland asked whether it should be just building principals or district
administration working on developing and implementing instructional materials to ensure
that all school employees and staff are made aware of the procedure and related
practices. Chair Weddle stated it should be district administration working on it together.

Lift abeyance action of coaching positions (Action)
Superintendent Doland stated students were able to come together and practice, doing
workouts and trainings according to the OHA and OSAA guidance. Another thing that
may be possible is some local competitions and club play in Lane County. She
recommended lifting the abeyance on all of the coaching positions for the remaining
school year.
Director Edmunds moved to have lift the abeyance on the coaching positions.
Director Martin seconded the motion and the motion passed with all

directors voting yes.
Superintendent Doland stated as soon as classes resume on January 4", sign-ups and
sports physicals will start and possibly by Wednesday the 6™ practices will begin.

Personnel
a. Resignation

Classified
Ashley Maslach — Head Cook OJSH (Effective 12/3/2020)
Superintendent Doland stated Ashley resil:gned as the head cook beginning of
December before taking the position of Financial Assistant and Food Service
Coortdinator, but the resignation had been missed in the agenda from last regular
meeting.
Director Edmunds moved to accept the resignation of Ashley Maslach Head
Cook of OJSH. Director Hardy seconded the motion and the motion passed

with all directors voting yes.

Adjourn
Meeting adjourned at 7:42pm



Oakridge School District No. 76
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WORK SESSION
January 04, 2021

The meeting of the Board of Directors of Oakridge School District No. 76 was
convened at 5:30 p.m. remotely by virtual Zoom webinar and called to order by
Chair Weddle.

In addition to the Chair, those present were Vice Chair Hardy, Directors Edmunds,
Martin and McPherson. Also present was Superintendent Doland, Confidential
Secretary Jayme Martin, OSBA Board Specialists Janet Avila-Medina and Kristen
Miles.

A. Board Development with OSBA on Public Comment at Board Meetings

1. Ms. Avila-Medina stated the Attorney General’s Public Records and Meetings
Manual says, “The right of public attendance guaranteed by the Public Meetings Law
does not include the right to participate by public testimony or comment” (Rosenblum,
2019, p. 155). The public has the right to attend and listen to the board meetings but
they do not have the legal right to participate or comment, that is the board's decision
and they can adopt a policy that allows public to make comment. The Qakridge School
Board does have a public comment policy BDDH. Ms. Avila-Medina read from the
policy, “Members of the public also are encouraged to share their ideas and opinions
with the Board when appropriate.” “During a session of a Board meeting open to the
public, members of the public may be invited to present comments during the
designated portion of the agenda. At the discretion of the Board Chair, further public
comment may be allowed.” She asked the board what they feel it means by the
designated portion of the agenda. Chair Weddle shared that at the last Regular Board
Meeting, public comment had been moved to the end of the meeting, where previously
public comment had been at the beginning and the end. He said it got to be too much
sometimes. Ms. Avila-Medina asked why the board had moved public comment and if
it had been helping. Superintendent Doland stated it was at the advice of the District's
legal counsel due to an online survey the attorney had conducted since the meetings
were now held virtually. The survey found that an hour set aside for public comment
was extreme. Ms. Miles stated in her experience working statewide, that having two
sections of public comment was not typical and an hour set aside for them is quite a
lot of time. OSBA’s advice as well, would be to shorten that period of public comment.
It was a good thing that we changed public comment so we could get more done at
board meetings ensuring they don’t go as long. Director Edmunds stated they used to
only have one section of public comment, but added a second section to ensure that
anyone who wanted to comment on what was discussed during the meeting would
have a chance to. She stated she prefers it to be at the end of the meeting. Ms. Miles
stated there are pros and cons to having public comment before and after the
meetings. The pro to public comment set before the meeting would be, the public could
see what was on the agenda and voice their opinions prior to any vote. She stated,



just as Director Edmunds had shared, the benefit to having it after the meeting is so
the public could share how they feel about what was discussed in that meeting. Ms.
Miles stated there was no right answer to whether public comment should be at the
beginning or the end. It just depended on the board and how they felt. Ms. Avila-
Medina asked the board whether they liked it at the beginning or the end better. Chair
Weddle expressed his preference was at the end. Director Martin stated he didn’t have
a preference either way, but he preferred only having one public comment section and
not two. Chair Weddle said they can't really tell yet whether it is better at the end or
not as there has only been one meeting since public comment was moved.

Ms. Avila-Medina moved to the next part of the policy, “requests for items on the
agenda”. She read, “A member of the public may request the superintendent consider
placing an item on the agenda of a regular Board meeting. This request should be
made in writing and presented to the superintendent for consideration at least seven
working days prior to the scheduled meeting.” She asked Superintendent Doland if the
public do in fact ask her to place an item on the agenda, and if so do they know to do
it in writing, and how are they made aware of the process that should be followed.
Superintendent Doland responded that since she has been Superintendent, she has
not received this type of request and as far as the public being made aware of the
process, the policies are on the District website, but that it could be called out more on
the Board specific page.

Ms. Avila-Medina continued with the policy, reading, “The Board will establish
procedures for public comment in open meetings. The purpose of these procedures
will be to inform the public how to effectively participate in Board meetings for the best
interests of the individual, the district and the patrons.” Ms. Avila-Medina asked if there
was in fact a procedure or “AR” for this policy. Director Edmunds stated there was a
pamphlet at the board meetings that spelled out how the board meetings were
conducted. She stated that could be something we could look at again. Superintendent
Doland said we could also put the pamphlet up on the website. Ms. Miles stated that
it is unusual for the public to directly request items be added to the agenda. Typically
that is brought forward in discussions with the principals, or the superintendent. Then
the ones responsible for setting the agenda add items based off of the discussions
that have been had. Ms. Miles stated it was neither good nor bad to allow the public
to request items on the agenda, but it was a little uncommon.

Ms. Avila-Medina continued from the policy, reading, “Discussion or presentation
concerning a published agenda item is limited to its designated place on the agenda,
unless otherwise authorized by the Board Chair”. She stated this is setting parameters
and being specific on where public comment is placed, but it could be more specific
about the duration and the limit per person making comment. She gave the example
of someone speaking too long and how to handle that. She advised creating an AR
that gave procedure on what exactly was expected and how to handle it. OSBA
suggests 3 minutes per person for public comment. Ms. Miles added that some boards
have a limit of 30 minutes for public comment and divide it up. Some boards have only
3 minutes per person. And some boards use both methods. They allow a total of 30
minutes and each person gets 3 minutes to speak and when the 30 minutes runs out,
they are done with public comment. Sometimes a group of people want to speak so
the board will allow one member of their group to give the overall message of what
their group wants to say, instead of hearing from each individual member of the group.
Ms. Avila-Medina states this helps to use the time in the most effective way.



Ms. Avila-Medina read from the policy, “A visitor speaking during the meeting may
introduce a topic not on the published agenda. The Board, at its discretion, may require
that a proposal, inquiry or request be submitted in writing, and reserves the right to
refer the matter to the administration for action or study.” Ms. Avila-Medina asked the
Board about this part of the policy. Chair Weddle stated sometimes a member of the
public will attend every board meeting to talk about the same issue. He explained the
Board tries to give a chance to the ones that haven't spoken in the last meetings a
chance to speak by going off a public comment sign up list, and granting those that
haven't spoken a chance to comment. Ms. Miles stated historically very few people
were showing up for board meetings to make public comment. She stated when there
are lots of people that want to give public comment, the time has been extended or
the amount of time allotted per person was shortened to allow for more people to be
able to speak. She stated there can be any limitations placed on the public comment
that the board desires as it was mentioned at the beginning that the public does not
have a legal right to speak. She said that since it was not established in the policy that
individuals who had already given public comment in the past few meetings were not
going to be able to give comment, some rules and guidelines needed to be adopted,
published and made available to the public. She stated it would be completely
appropriate to ask members of the public that if they have made comment in the past
meetings, to know that others will be called on first, or that the board asks them to
allow others to go first.

Ms. Avila-Medina moved on in the policy, “Statements by members of the public should
be brief and concise. The Board chair may use discretion to establish a time limit on
discussion or oral presentation by visitors.” She asked the Board Chair about this part.
Chair Weddle stated that brief and concise was limited to the three minutes. Now with
public comment only being once in the meeting this allows for only 30 minutes which
then allows for at least 10 people to speak. Superintendent Doland added that it had
been asked of the public to submit their comments in writing before the meeting and
all of those become part of the meeting minutes and are posted. Ms. Miles stated that
was a great idea. Saying if we run out of time for public comment, those submitted in
writing, are still getting their voice heard. Speaking at a board meeting is not the only
way the public can give input. Allowing the public to submit written comment
guarantees the Board will certainly see them and take them into consideration. This is
potentially a really good solution to too many people wanting to make verbal comment:
and not having enough time. Ms. Avila-Medina stated this will also help with equity and
will alleviate those feelings of one member of the public getting chosen over the other
to speak.

Ms. Avila-Medina moved to “Comments Regarding Staff Members. Speakers may
offer objective criticism of district operations and programs. The Board will not hear
comments regarding any individual district staff member. The Board chair will direct
the visitor to the procedures in Board policy KL - Public Complaints for Board
consideration of a legitimate complaint involving a staff member. A commendation
involving a staff member should be sent to the superintendent, who will forward it to
the employee, their supervisor and the Board.” She stated what this portion is
emphasizing is that the public can comment and criticize the District’s operations and
programs, but they can’t single out one person. They can't state a staff member's name
or position, such as Principal or Superintendent, nothing that can identify that
individual. For complaints there is a policy and a procedure that the public can utilize.



Director Edmunds stated when the Board adopted this policy from the sample from
OSBA, but after going through it, the Board should relook at this policy and fine tune
it to fit our specific needs. Ms. Miles added that they were looking through the Public
Comment policy before the meeting and realized it was in OSBA’s model policy and it
may work for some but probably a lot of it could be updated and changed. There is a
way to look at it to see which parts are working for Oakridge School District and which
parts are not working as well as which parts are never used. The petition part is not
common and if it is never used, you are not required to keep that language in the
policy. That would be a great project for the board to take on. Director Martin stated
the Board should have a Work Session and establish an AR for this policy. Ms. Avila-
Medina stated an AR would be great for this policy as well as a possible script for how
to address situations during public comment. Director Edmunds stated she agreed
there needs to be an AR for this policy as well as edit the current Public Comment
policy. Ms. Miles stated someone from OSBA Policy department could help in
reworking the policy. Chair Weddle asked Superintendent Doland and Board
Secretary Martin to arrange a Work Session with OSBA Policy Department.

Ms. Avila-Medina spoke on Public Correspondence and Public Inquiries. Vice Chair
Hardy stated it had been decided that whenever any of the board members received
any type of correspondence, it would be forwarded to the Board Chair who is
spokesman for the Board representing all. OSBA advised the Board should not be
giving in depth responses. Ms. Avila-Medina suggested a response statement. In
some situations the Board simply cannot answer the questions that are being asked
of them. Those questions need to be forwarded to the Superintendent. So a general
response would be appropriate in these circumstances. Chair Weddle replied that he
does do a general statement explaining he has read their letter and he will be
forwarding it on to the Superintendent. He spoke about this being tied to not replying
to public comment either due to not seeing both sides of the situation and needing
more information before responding. Ms. Miles stated that is exactly what they would
recommend. She explained there is a process in place for any types of complaints
that would be brought to the board. This process has many things at interest but one
of them being equity. She explained if a board member were to engage with a
member of the public because they knew them, and not someone else because they
did not know them, then the one that knew that board member would have inequitable
access to the board. The same is thought of regarding public comment. If the board
were to engage with someone during public comment, but not someone else, there
would be an equity issue. She stated this is also the same with any correspondence
with the public. Ms. Miles suggested explaining to the public that there are roles,
responsibilities, and processes in place. She gave an example of what she did when
she was board secretary saying there was one board email that she was in charge
of. Members of the public would write to this one email and she would then either
respond or send it to a different department for them to respond, always copying all
board members so they were aware of the questions and comments being sent and
that there was follow up. Sometimes the Board Chair would respond saying, “Thank
you for writing. | know our staff are on top of this, and someone will get back to you.”
Ms. Miles stated the board can certainly respond because it is important for the public
to hear directly from the Board but in some situations, not all information can be put
forth, or some information is confidential and the public simply does not have a right
to some answers they are seeking. Director Martin stated currently the Board is
getting a lot of emails ranging from a simple question to bargaining agreement issues
that the Board has no right in answering. Another issue he feels that is happening



right now is emails are not getting answered or acknowledged and the public is getting
frustrated. He feels that the public are now “Board Shopping” to get some sort of
answer. He stated he liked the idea of having only one Board email that one person
was responsible for. Director Martin felt the citizens and staff needed to be educated
with the process for the future. Ms. Miles stated this was really important that the
public is made aware that even though it may not be directly from the board, someone
will be responding to them. She stated no one in the public knows what the Board
does. They feel like board members can take individual action, run on an agenda and
advance that personal agenda as part of your board role, but that is simply not true.
But there is no information out there really for the public to necessarily know that.
There is a recommendation to Boards to create an educational piece for the public as
part of community engagement stating the Board's roles and responsibilities.
Explaining the public may not get what they want out of Board members because it
is not the Boards role. The Board’s role is policy, budget governance, hiring and
evaluation of the superintendent. Anything else falls under the role and
responsibilities of the superintendent. OSBA has held Board 101 for communities
before where the community will ask questions and the OSBA members will respond
on exactly the way the Board operates, the guidelines they have to operate under,
roles and responsibilities, and restrictions the public may not be aware of. Educating
the public can, a lot of times, diffuse their frustrations. A lot of the frustrations could
be around feeling ignored when there is an expectation that the Board cannot meet
because it is not their role. There might be a way to educate the public simply by
adding an educational piece to the agenda of the board. Ms. Avila-Medina added part
of community engagement is building that trust with the community. Therefore, if the
Board could be upfront and talk about the processes and procedures, it will build that
trust and the community could feel like they are being heard. Director Edmunds liked
the idea of having OSBA do a Board role 101 with the community during one of the
Board Meetings and asked Chair Weddle and Superintendent Doland to work on
getting that arranged. Superintendent Doland stated she could work on that.

Ms. Avila-Medina asked if there were any other trainings the Board would like to
have. Director Edmunds stated community engagement and conflict resolution
trainings would be a priority for her. Chair Weddle agreed. Ms. Avila-Medina stated
she and Ms. Miles could work on getting those together.

B. Policy ACB-AR - All Students Belong (2nd Read/Action)

Superintendent Doland explained this is a 2nd reading of the policy, Bias Complaint
procedure. Superintendent Doland made the changes that were discussed in the
previous work session. She asked for clarification regarding step two of the procedure
to either make a decision or determine responsibility about the event within 10 days
of receiving the complaint. Chair Weddle stated if it were to say make a decision, that
puts all responsibility on the administrator, but determine responsibility, more input
can be had and does not necessarily have to be the full responsibility of the
administrator. Director Martin stated he liked it to be a communal decision including
the principal, superintendent and possibly an outside investigator if necessary.
Superintendent Doland clarified that this part would be at the building investigation
level. The building principal would be making a decision of those involved or
determining responsibility of the parties involved. Chair Weddle preferred “determine
responsibility” wording. Director McPherson stated she also preferred “determine
responsibility” because the administrator could then prepare for the next step being



educating and corrective action piece of the investigation. Director Martin and Vice
Chair Hardy liked “determine responsibility”. Superintendent Doland stated in order
to take corrective action, you do have to determine the responsibilities of the parties
involved. All Board members agreed the wording would read “determine
responsibility”.

Director Edmunds moved to approve Policy ACB-AR with the

changes made. Vice Chair Hardy seconded the motion. The

motion carried with all directors voting yes.

C. Policy BBF-Board member Standards of Conduct- Operating Principals

Superintendent Doland reminded the Board there had been discussion about using
the 2nd version of this policy and making it into operating principles for the board.
She suggested adding it as an agenda item onto a future Work Session. Chair
Weddle agreed.

Chair Weddle suggested to the rest of the Board to reach out to each other to discuss
any thing that might be going on or bothering someone. He reminded them they
could not meet as a group, but could meet on a one on one basis and that could
possibly help.

D. Adjourn

Meeting adjourned at 6:49pm.



Oakridge School District No. 76
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WORK SESSION
January 11, 2021

The meeting of the Board of Directors of Oakridge School District No. 76 was convened
at 6:08 p.m. remotely by virtual Zoom webinar and called to order by Chair Weddle.

In addition to the Chair, those present were Vice Chair Hardy, Directors Edmunds, Martin
and McPherson. Also present was Superintendent Doland, Business Manager Peggy
Mahla, Food Service Coordinator Ashley Kirkhart, Confidential Secretary Jayme Martin,
Principal Chapman, Principal Iten, Special Education Director Dr. Harrison, Youth in
Transition Liaison Mark Osborn.

Board Appreciation Month

1%t grade teacher Tina Maher shared Oakridge Teacher's Association’s appreciation to the Board
and said she hoped they received the small gift in the mail. She stated her thanks for the Board’s
service from the teachers.

OSEA President, Andrea Bray shared her appreciation to the Board reading, “The Oregon School
Employees Association chapter 46 would like to express their appreciation to the Oakridge School
District Board of Directors, and the commitment they have made to our district. These five individuals
approach their volunteer work like it is their full time job. They are an extremely hardworking group
of volunteers and are dedicated to the School District, as well as the communities of Oakridge and
Westfir. Although their decisions do not always align with public opinion, we recognize and
appreciate that they're ultimately doing what is best for our students, staff and schools. Through their
advocacy dedication and collaboration with school district administrators, and other district staff,
they're helping build the future of education in Oakridge. On behalf of Oakridge School District
Classified Staff. | would like to thank you for your service and dedication to Oakridge Junior Senior
High School, the Alternative Education Program, Oakridge Elementary School, Westridge Early
Education Programs, and the Family Resource Center.

Superintendent Doland read a letter from Oakridge City Mayor Kathy Holsten declaring her
appreciation to the members of the Oakridge School District Board and proclaimed the month of
January school board recognition month. Mayor Holsten urged all citizens to join her in recognizing
the dedication and hard work of school board members in preparing today's students for tomorrow's
world.

Superintendent Doland expressed her appreciation saying, “Thank you so much each one of you for
your service to our community. | know you spent countless hours working to provide the best possible
education for our students. And you also serve as board of directors for one of the largest employers



in our community and celebrating our School Board Recognition Month is just one way we can say
thank you for all that you do. Thank you very much.”

Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes December 14, 2020

Vice Chair Hardy moved to accept the Board Meeting Minutes on December 14, 2020.
Director Edmunds seconded the motion and the motion passed with all directors voting yes.

Announcements/Correspondence

Chair Weddle read an announcement saying at the December 14, 2020 meeting, the Board
authorized retention of an outside agency to investigate a complaint against the
Superintendent that had been received on December 10, 2020. Through the attorney the
Board obtained an investigator with RS2 Education Consulting. The investigators are
authorized only to investigate that complaint. Board policy KL-AR requires complaints to be
processed at the lowest level first. In order to comply with policy KL-AR and manage the cost
of the investigation no additional complaints will be referred to the investigators unless the
Board so authorizes at a future board meeting.

Review Expenditures for November-General funds/Special Funds/OSD

Bond

Business Manager Peggy Mahla gave the expenditure report for November 2020. She said
the District spent $721, 059 to operate the month of November. $7,700 was spent for bond,
$43,000 was spent for the SRGP and the first interest payment was paid on the bond in the
amount of $122,469 which was due December 15, paid in November. Ms. Mahla reported
the audit was completed and sent electronically by the auditors to ODE. She said the District
should be getting their bound copies sometime this month and then Board members can
come and pick them up.

Reports
1. Superintendent’s Report — Superintendent Doland

® Reopening/County Metrics and Data
Superintendent Doland stated during the winter break Governor Kate Brown announced new
guidelines for in-person learning in that she announced that Oregon will no longer mandate
the state's prior public health metrics for returning to in-person instruction. The previous
restrictions on reopening are now advisory. Governor Brown has asked school districts to
work towards the resumption of in-person instruction to the greatest extent possible in making
decisions based on science, public health and safety. She expressed her hope that schools
statewide will offer more in-person instruction by February 15. However, certain health and
safety standards will remain mandatory, including wearing masks, maintaining social distance
and responding to COVID-19 outbreaks in a school. In addition, following Ready School, Safe
Learners plans is also mandatory. While the restrictions for in-person learning have been
relaxed in some ways, health and safety of our students and staff is of utmost importance.
Therefore, the Oakridge School District currently plans to continue to utilize the local public
health data and metrics to determine when students can return to in-person learning. The
state is set to provide additional updates to Oregon, Oregon’s Covid-19 heaith metrics and
Ready School Safe Learners guidance for returning to in-person instruction. That guidance is
due to come out on or about January 19. HB 4402, a bill passed in a special session of the



Legislature in December limits school liability to COVID-19. HB 4402 is in effect if and only if
schools are following all OHA and ODE guidance. Currently the health metrics that the
governor has set are guidance and not mandatory. This guidance is already in our Ready
School Safe Learners plans. ODE and the Oregon Health Authority have mandated those as
was required. So this is the issue in the law, that if we don't follow the metrics then we lose
our limited liability over COVID-19. So, as you can imagine, there are a lot of lawyers in the
state who are working on that issue to resolve it and we hope that by the time we get the
guidance on January, 19, we have an answer to that as well. Superintendent Doland stated
she recognized that many in our community wish to return to person learning as soon as
possible. We need our kids in school and OSD is committed to the return of students to
school and committed to doing that in a safe way. The guidance from our expert state and
local partners will be relied upon heavily, when we're making decisions for returning students
to schools. Superintendent Doland appreciated those who have taken time to reach out and
share their thoughts on the reopening. She said a survey for parents and guardians will be
sent out this week. The responses to the survey will help us as we are planning, and as we
navigate through this new situation, so that we can safely bring our students back to person
learning. Any parents who wish to continue to have their students learn via comprehensive
distance learning or online learning, will have the option available to them. She stated this
pandemic continues to challenge all of us but she is confident that our district, with all of our
committed educators and strong support staff, students and our families all working together,
will find an appropriate balance between health safety and the educational needs of our
students. We will continue to post weekly COVID-19 infection rates in our county on our
website.

Chair Weddle stated we need to let the community know exactly who those authorities are
that are mandating our reopening plans so they can understand why we are not coming back
to school as quickly as possible and they feel a part of the decision making.

Superintendent Doland agreed saying the two groups that the District leans on are the
Oregon Health Authority , but more closely related to home is the Lane County Public Health,
and she has meetings with them, weekly, and is in contact with our public health advisor, just
about daily, the person who is assigned to Lane County Schools. Superintendent Doland
stated she does have a new communication that will go out to our community this week.
Some more specific information around bringing kids back.

Director Martin asked a question regarding teachers and school staff being moved to 1A
group for vaccinations, and how soon our staff can receive their vaccinations.

Superintendent Doland stated Lane County Public Health reported the Oregon Health
Authority has moved school staff in between 1A, which are medical care workers, first
responders and category 1B to receive the vaccine. We've been working with Orchid Health,
and our staff are beginning to sign up. Wednesday, are the first appointments for school staff
to receive the vaccine. Superintendent Doland thanked Sarah Scott with Orchid Clinic for
accommodating our staff and making the opportunity not only available, but also easily
accessible for our staff. She sated it is available to all of our staff, including our bus drivers
who we contract for but they are our staff as well.

Enroliment

Superintendent Doland stated our current district enrollment is 530. Our last month our total
enroliment was 526. That is in comparison to last year at this time, our enrollment was 560.
At this point, we're down about 5% from last year. She stated our enroliment over the year
since the beginning of the school year until now really has remained fairly steady. We've had



a change of four students either up or down since the beginning of the school year. At this
point in time, the middle school has an increase of seven students from last year. At our high
school, they're down six students from last year. And the elementary school is down 30
students from last year. Superintendent Doland stated younger students might have other
options and may be doing more homeschooling. Many schools across the state are
experiencing between 10 and 20% enrollment decrease so she feels very unfortunate the
District is only at a 5% decrease.

e Technology
Superintendent Doland reported the Apogee project to extend our internet through our
community, is just about finished. Gerald McCool, our technology director, is working with
vendors to problem solve a few issues. There will be a discussion later this week on how the
District is going to roll out information on accessing the internet. She thanked Gerald McCool
and Tony Hammock for their work in this project. As well as Oakridge City and City
Administrator Bryan Cutchen for their diligent work in moving this project forward.

¢ Budget Outlook
Superintendent Doland gave data on the budget outlook. The economic and revenue forecast
was accomplished. It states a slow economic recovery. Unemployment had dropped to 6.9
from double digits in the beginning of the pandemic. And the revenues for the 19-21 biennium
were up slightly compared to the numbers released in September. It's good news in terms of
closing out the current two year budget cycle and reinforces the stability in school funding for
the 2020-21 school year. On December 1, Governor Brown released her recommended
budget for the 21-23 biennium. The budget proposed will be reviewed and amended by the
legislature during their spring session. The budget she proposed was 9.1 billion allocation for
the new biennium for the state school fund. This is Oakridge School District’s principal source
of funding. Though 9.1 billion is up from what was allocated this year, which was 9.0, the
budget prioritizes investments in Early Learning and it also prioritizes a full distribution of
Student Success Act funds which we received about a third of this year of allocation. It also
prioritizes full Measure 98 funding. Measure 98 is what we use in large part for our CTE
programs. So just to summarize, the proposed budget reflects a prioritization of K- 12
funding, overall, is significantly more positive than the forecast we are hearing in September.

e Assessment
Superintendent Doland spoke about Smarter Balanced assessments in English and Math,
and also our Oregon State assessment in Science. The Department of Education is applying
for a temporary pause on English Language Arts, Math and Science testing for the 2020-21
school year. The US Department of Education requires that we measure how well our
education systems are meeting the needs of students and student groups by annual
administration of tests. Because of the pandemic last year, there was a waiver on state
testing. Oregon has asked for another waiver for 2020-21 citing traditional schooling has
been significantly disrupted by the Covid-19 pandemic, an extreme wildfire season, political
instability and other factors. These disruptions have removed the conditions we need for
somebody to test to fulfill the purpose. It's difficult when we can't bring students in having
secure testing measures in place, as well as the delivery of instruction has been disrupted
this year. It is expected ODE will know more about the waiver in the coming weeks. The U.S.
Department of Education is now in a transition and after it settles down, we hope for an
answer. In the meantime, we are looking at some interim assessments the Department of
Education is providing to school districts.



2. Food Service Report

Ashely Kirkhart, Food Service Coordinator reported the OES Food Service Program is
negative $26,250.85. Last year, this time the balance was $5,821.42. Oakridge Junior Senior
High School program balance is $57,961.80. Last year, this time it was negative $30,423.73.
The complete district balance is $31,710.95. Last year at this time, it was $11,471.35. She
gave an update on the Food Service Program, and how it is currently running. She stated the
District is currently serving under the Summer Food Service Program, which allows the
District to serve meals to anyone in our district between the ages of zero to 18. She said they
served over 7,600 meals, a breakfast and lunch in the month of December, and the meals
are prepared, put on a bus and delivered to our youth and families. She gave information on
how to participate in the program if not aiready participating by contacting the District office.
Ms. Kirkhart personally thanked everyone who is currently working or helping in the Food
Service Program. She stated they have had a great few months, and have a great team of
individuals ensuring food is brought to our children.

Chair Weddle gave kudos to the people that are working in food service, saying they are
doing a great job.

3. OJSH Report

e Attendance
Principal Chapman reminded the Board that the District was changing the way attendance is
taken. Starting December 7, a student no longer had to be in class as the only option to be
counted present. Completing work online also now counts as being present. Principal
Chapman ran all the attendance under the old procedures and then ran one month under the
new procedures. He reported a 6% increase in attendance under the new procedures. He
stated this is not quite the increase he would like to see, but it is on par with what other
schools are seeing in their attendance. Principal Chapman stated he would like to say the
increase is due to more students attending, but he says the increase is due to the way
attendance is being taken now. He stated house visits are still being made to try to get
students to attend. Also, Mrs. Scott is having meetings with any seniors who are at risk of not
completing this year. Efforts are being made to keep in touch with kids and keep them
engaged.

e Fuel Ed
Principal Chapman reminded the Board that Fuel Ed provides a teacher of record, it stretches
over multiple sessions and Fuel Ed is going to become one of our students three courses. A
new session started today, so most high school students have a core class, math class and a
lab class. He stated Fuel Ed courses are only semester courses so it makes it confusing.
With Acellus, if a student completes all courses, they receive a year credit. With Fuel Ed, if a
student completes all courses, it is only a semester that has been completed and the next
part of the semester needs to be loaded. Starting today OJSH has set the courses to start
April 15t and go through the end of the year to complete the 2" semester. Students are
allowed to work faster. It is designed to work at the student’s pace so it is conceivable that a
student can complete the course before the end of the year. Principal Chapman wanted all
students to be aware that the courses they are currently working on is only a semester and
not the whole year.

o Grades



Principal Chapman stated all students are only getting two grades right now. They are
enrolled in three courses, but are not getting a grade for study hall. He showed the data on
the number of students failing courses or having incompletes. He stated 46% of students
failed or did not complete one or more classes during the session. Approximately 42
incompletes have been completed. He stated the percentage number could have been a lot
higher if these incompletes had not been remedied. In session two, there were 42% of
students that had failed or not completed one or more classes. Principal Chapman stated he
had wanted to see a lower number, but at least the percentage number was decreasing
instead of increasing.

e Successes

Principal Chapman stated he was very impressed on how the substitute teachers have been
creating relationships with students especially in Distance Learning. He was very happy with
the hard work Ms. Hutchens and Mr. Handman had been doing. Principal Chapman also
gave praise to Mr. Fujii, stating he was having a lot of success and was encouraged to
watch him teach. Mr. Fuijii has been spending a lot of time outside of his normal contracted
hours in teaching one on one with the students and that is where a lot of the learning is
coming from this year is on a one on one basis.

Principal Chapman reported seven trees had been decorated for Festival of Trees and six of
them were given to different households. This is an event that the Leadership class has
been doing for several years, and Principal Chapman praised Ms. Schmidig for keeping
school as normal as possible this year.

There was a virtual OMSI field trip of Genghis Khan that was held with Mrs. Sokolowski’s
class. It was the first one OMSI had put on. Principal Chapman praised Mrs. Sokolowski for
also keeping classes as normal as possible.

Principal Chapman stated sports started today and Junior High will start tomorrow. He
reported the coaches were all trained on Covid protocols and the screening practices. He
stated in season one of sports there were no formal competitions set up through OSAA.
Informal competitions could be arranged by the districts. He stated competitions could
possibly happen in the next session.

Principal Chapman reported 10 seniors have completed. Two 5" year seniors finished by the
end of September. Most seniors start their year only needing three credits, one being
personal finance which is not needed this year, which makes only two credits needed to be
obtained. Most seniors opted to go through the online course with Mr. Skordah! and
complete those online courses to finish. If they want to come back and do sports, they can
be enrolled to take two courses on Acellus.

o Board Appreciation
Principal Chapman gave his appreciation to the Board and thanked them for their time and
effort for their service to the students.

Director Edmunds asked if Principal Chapman could continue to give an update on sports in
his reports. Principal Chapman stated he would do that.

4. OES Report



¢ Attendance

Principal Iten stated the Elementary school’s attendance is at 92% for the school year
compared to 94% last year. Kindergarten is at 97%, 1% grade - 94%, 2" grade - 94%, 3
grade - 91%, 4" grade — 86%, 5" grade- 94% Principal Iten gave a shout out to Mrs. Howard
and Mr. Gordon for reaching out to students, 6"- 83% and Life Skills at 90%. The Elementary
enrollment has remained steady at 284 students. He predicts with a few phone calls left to
make, they will be back up in the 286 or 287 range. Principal Iten stated they keep their
classroom sizes very balanced with Kindergartens both at 22, 1%t grade at 16 and 15, 2™
grade 21 and 21, 3 grade 20 and 21, 4" grade 15 and 16, 5" grade is even, and 6™ grade is
20 and 22. Ms. Shepard has 5 in Life Skils.

e Limited-In-Person Instruction

Principal Iten stated limited-in-person instruction was going very well. He showed pictures of
the Kindergarten teachers checking in students and other students waiting with distance
between them. He stated classes are running very smoothly and keeping social distancing.
He stated parents are doing a fantastic job when it comes to keeping their children home
when they are feeling a little sick. Principal Iten stated new protocols are being put in place
for that and it is working really well. A few students are coming in for tutoring. He gave a big
shout out to Mrs. Maher and Ms. Shafor who are working one on one with students, doing
some individual tutoring. Principal lten stated they were not the only teachers doing it and
praised his 2"-6™ grade teachers who are also doing some individual tutoring with students.

Principal Iten showed pictures of the custodians using the electrostatic backpacks to disinfect
everything. He stated the custodial staff are doing a great job of keeping everything
disinfected with the backpacks.

5. Special Programs

e Celebrations and Recognitions

Dr. Harrison stated there has been very good student engagement and attendance with
limited-in-person instruction. He stated students are very excited to be in school and following
all the rules they are learning due to Covid. Dr. Harrison thanked all the staff in the District
that are working in the collaboration meetings. He stated it was a big ask of the teachers to
have meetings every other week for all the students in special services and to do that over
and over again, but it has had such a positive effect on the services they are able to provide
to the students. He was impressed by the way everyone was continually able to work
together and come up with new creative solutions in this challenging environment with
distance learning.

Dr. Harrison stated Mr. Myers joined the District team as a Special Education teacher this fall
and has had an excellent, positive, upbeat influence on the students he serves. Dr. Harrison
said it is fantastic to see Mr. Myers keeping those students engaged.

Dr. Harrison thanked Mrs. Bradbeer saying she had taken her extra time in supporting the
SPED team by preparing materials for students in distance learning.

Dr. Harrison reported they were able to restart their Lego Robotics team. Members that had
participated last year had been invited to start before the holiday break. Several meetings
were held and the students are progressing. He stated the competitions have been moved to



April and are being held in a completely distanced format. He stated it is fantastic to allow this
program to keep running especially for those who competed last year and progressed onto
the state competition.

e Board Appreciation
Dr. Harrison thanked the Board for their time and service to the students. He thanked them
for their support in the District.

e Limited-in-Person Instruction

Dr. Harrison stated there are A and B rotating cohorts coming in on different days serving 65
students in Limited-in-Person instruction. At OES there are seven additional cohorts, serving
about 18 students. There are all sorts of individual student needs that are being
accommodated and supporting them in different ways. At OJSH there are four different
cohorts and serving about 15 students every day coming in for the two hour maximum. In the
future more will be invited to come in person. Dr. Harrison reported the collaboration
meetings have really been the core of the Special Ed services in the District. There are
approximately 100 Special Ed students attending. He said they are being supported primarily
by the specialists and regular education teachers. At OES every other week, there are six
separate meetings with each grade level team going through each student discussing
different ways on how to support them and what their needs are in Comprehensive Distance
Learning. This has resulted in a great deal of individualized support and team building across
the district. These same meetings are happening at the Junior Senior High. There are four
meetings with combined grade levels every other week. The teams are doing a fantastic job
of documenting each student throughout the whole academic year, and progress and
interventions that are being done to support them. It is hard to quantify but it is approximately
15 hours a month that the specialist are consulting additionally with some other specialist or
teacher for individual student support. Dr. Harrison reported some students are doing Acellus
online and are doing very well. They only need a little extra support so they are getting
asynchronous support. The specialists are creating specially designed assignments or extra
work for these eight students to do offline to help them progress. There are also co-teaching
and push-in services where a Special Education teacher is either joining an online Google
meet with another teacher, or taking a Google meet over and teaching content. They may be
meeting in a breakout group where multiple Special Ed students are gathered, or they may
be taking over to teach a social skills lesson to the whole classroom. The SPED staff is doing
about 39 of those lessons weekly anywhere from 30 minutes to an hour. For Limited-In-
Person instruction, about 28 students are receiving 2 hours of support daily to help them
access the core curriculum through CDL. Then there are 56 one on one direct sessions
occurring weekly that the specialists are doing lasting 30 minutes to an hour.

Chair Weddle stated based on the numbers that Dr. Harrison reported the Special Programs
is serving approximately 20% of the student population and there are more kids coming in
person then he originally thought which is a very good thing.

6. Youth in Transition

Youth in Transition Specialist, Mark Osborn stated currently there are 39 students that are
identified as McKinney Vento which is approximately 11.8% of the student population. By the



state definition, these students are considered homeless. The District has responded to these
student needs just as we have in past years by doing their laundry, bringing them food, clothing,
blankets and making sure they have basic essential needs met. The Districts assists them with
getting documents such as birth certificates and social security cards so they can get their driver
licenses. Five kids have been identified as McKinney Vento who are not registered with the
school and have not been receiving any sort of education before this year. They are now enrolled
in school getting them the education they deserve. With the Food Program and Food Pantry, the
District has given over 13,720 pounds of food to over half of our students. The full clothing closet
is up and running. All of these students that are considered McKinney Vento are invited into
Limited-In-Person instruction to make sure they have the access to a quality education.

Vice Chair Hardy told Mark, “Nice work.”

F. Unfinished Business
1. Policy ACB (2" Reading/Action)

Superintendent Doland stated at the last Work Session the Board approved the AR to go with ACB,
but had not approved the policy. She recommended to adopt Policy ACB as the Board had edited at
the Work Session.

Vice Chair Hardy moved to approve Policy ACB as the Board had edited. Director Martin
seconded the motion and the motion passed with all directors voting yes.

2. OTA MOU Comprehensive Distance Learning and Hybrid Learning

Superintendent Doland stated the MOU with the Oakridge Teachers Association and Lane County
Bargaining Group was negotiated right before the holiday break. She stated there is a financial
impact as 10 days for Covid Leave has been added. She recommended the Board approve the
MOU.

Vice Chair Hardy moved to approve the MOU as negotiated. Director Edmunds seconded
the motion and the motion passed with all directors voting yes.

3. OTA MOU Employee retirement Provisions

Superintendent Doland explained this MOU is an outcome of a bargaining session with
Executive Counsel of the Oakridge Teachers Association. It provides for this year only a
retirement incentive to those teachers who are eligible for full retirement. She recommended
approval of the MOU.

Director Edmunds moved to approve the MOU for retirement. Director Martin seconded the
motion with an amendment that the strikeout be removed. Director Edmunds approved
Director Martin’s amendment and the motion passed with all directors voting yes.

G. New Business

No new business.



H. Personnel
1. Employment Recommendations
Classified
Jessica Brissette, OJSH Head Cook, 7 hours per day (Effective
January 12, 2021)

Director Edmunds moved to accept the employee recommendation as listed. Vice Chair
Hardy seconded the motion and the motion passed with all directors voting yes.

. Public Comment

No public comment.

J. Executive Session Pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2)(i) Review and evaluate the employment-
related performance of the chief executive officer of any public body, a public officer,
employee or staff member, unless the person whose performance is being reviewed and
evaluated requests an open hearing.

Chair Weddle opened the Executive Session at 7:23pm. Oakridge School District Legal
Counsel, Nancy Hungerford reviewed complaints made regarding employment related
performance and gave recommendations.

K. Future Agenda ltems

1. Next Regular School Board Meeting, February 8, 2021 6:00 p.m., Virtual Zoom
Meeting

2. Board Work Session January 25, 2021 with OSBA

L. Adjourn

Meeting was adjourned at 9:03pm



Review of Expenditures for December 2020

Our total operating budget for 2020-2021 is $15,885,262

We spent $1,070,047 to operate the month of December. That is 6.74% of the total District
operating budget. This total includes all expenditures including payroll.

Through December 31, we have encumbered and expended $6,267,239 from a General Fund budget
of $8,216,130. This represents 76.28% of the General Fund budget.*

Through December 31, we have expended only a total of $2,349,927 from the General Fund, which
represents 28.60%

*Although we are 6 months into the fiscal year, as of December 2020 we have encumbered and
expended 76.28% of the General Fund. However, it is important to remember that encumbrances
include financial obligations. This primarily involves purchase orders awaiting delivery and
unexpended salary through June 30 for licensed staff, i.e. summer checks.

(Source of Information is the Summary Expenditure Status Report)



CHECK TOTAL VENDOR
47760 $ 1,694.35 |AMAZON
47761 S 400.00 |B & B ACCESSIBILITY CONTRACTORS
47762 3 2,811.94 [BANNER BANK
47763 S 5,465.00 |BRIDGEWAY HOUSE
47764 S 3.78 |CENTURYLINK
47765 S 4,138.00 |COMFORT FLOW HEATING
47766 S 2,722.45 |EMERALD FRUIT/PRODUCE CO
47767 S 1,515.21 |FERRELLGAS
47768 S 15,767.00 |FM SHEET METAL, INC.
47769 S 104.98 |HOME DEPOT PRO
47770 S 63.00 [LANE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS
47771 S 17,697.80 |MATH LEARNING CENTER
47772 $ 335,154.00 |MCKENZIE COMMERCIAL CONTRACTORS
47773 $ 376.01 |OAKRIDGE HARDWARE
47774 S 989.90 |OAKRIDGE SANI-HAUL
47775 $ 1,616.09 |CITY OF OAKRIDGE
47776 S 102.69 |OFFICE DEPOT
47777 S 348.00 |OREGON WATER SERVICES INC
47778 S 218.40 |PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOMATION
47779 $ 1,358.00 |PAPE MACHINERY
47780 S 109.43 |SIERRA SPRINGS
47781 S 3,893.80 [STATE OF OREGON
47782 S 3,529.30 [SYSCO
47783 S 6,353.67 |TYREE OIL, INC
47784 [ 2,715.25 [UMPQUA DAIRY PRODUCTS COMPANY
47785 S 44.12 |ACCESS INFORMATION HOLDINGS, LLC
47786 S 2,500.00 |ANNIE SCHROEDER
47787 S 608.20 |HEADSTART OF LANE COUNTY
47788 S - |LANE ELECTRIC CO-OP
47789 S 17,049.23 |LANE ELECTRIC CO-OP
47790 S 2,679.52 [LOWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT 71
47791 3 57.88 |PEGGY MAHLA
47792 5 409.65 |CITY OF OAKRIDGE
47793 $ 143.82 |PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOMATION
47794 [ 119.00 |PSAT/NMSQT
47795 $ 303.00 [SCANTRON
47796 $ 289.93 [TIAA BANK
47797 3 155.79 |VALLEY CREDIT SERVICE, INC.
47798 S 80.02 |VERIZON WIRELESS
47799 S 331.00 |WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT REGISTRY
47800 5 1,887.48 |AMERICAN FIDELITY
47801 3 4,112.64 |AMERICAN FIDELITY
47802 $ 295.83 |HEALTH SERVICES ADMINISTRATION
47803 $ 1,334.00 |AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL, INC.
47804 $ 908.10 |MATRIX TRUST COMPANY
47805 S 1,800.00 |HORACE MANN INSURANCE CO
47806 $ 138.00 |MASA
47807 S 377.00 |OAKRIDGE TEACHERS ASSOCIATION
47808 $ 2,252.69 |OEA
47809 S 910.95 |OSEA
47810 S 50.00 |OSEA/OAKRIDGE CHAPTER 46
47811 S 1,425.00 |THRIVENT FINANCIAL FOR LUTHERANS
47812 3 1,235.00 [VALIC
47813 S 1,872.00 |FEI
47814 S 1,720.00 |FUEL EDUCATION
47815 $ 46,526.61 |REDS, LLC
47816 S 2,159.29 |AMAZON
47817 S 1,294.96 |CENTURYLINK
47818 $ 14.22 |CENTURYLINK
47819 3 1,065.60 |CENTURYLINK ACCESS




CHECK TOTAL VENDOR

47820 S 6,875.00 |EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCE LLC
47821 S 1,969.31 [EMERALD FRUIT/PRODUCE CO
47822 S 156.95 [INDUSTRIAL SOURCE
47823 S 12,500.00 |CYNTHIA NEACE

47824 S 56,623.99 [PIVOT ARCHITECTURE
47825 $ 6,196.50 |PIVOT ARCHITECTURE
47826 S 2,736.13 |SYSCO

47827 S 1,412.90 |UMPQUA DAIRY PRODUCTS COMPANY
47828 S 450.60 |VERIZON WIRELESS
47829 S 2,151.72 |AMAZON

47830 S 1,264.53 [CENTURYLINK

47831 S 44.65 |CENTURYLINK

47832 S 115.90 [CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
47833 S 350.00 |[CNA SURETY DIRECT BILL
47834 S 150.00 |OREGON LABOR LAW DIGEST LLC
87995 S 1,434.83 |BATTEN, KAREN

87996 S 1,244,90 |DEARDORFF, REBECCA
87997 S 3,974.02 |SOKOLOWSKI, RYAN
87998 S 1,228.84 |SPLIETHOF, JEANETTE
87999 S 2,296.76 |HAMMOCK, ANTHONY
88000 S 599.35 [JONES, NICOLE

88001 S 134.02 |[MCMAHON, LORI
88002 S 716.09 |[MCNAIR, DANIELLE
V16058 S 1,935.95 |000000000700000
V16059 S 3,367.96 | 0000000000000
V16060 S 1,130.22 | 000000000000

V16061 S 2,637.23 | CO0000000C00000C0
V16062 $ 2,111.74 (000000000000

V16063 S 629.54 | 00000000000000000
V16064 S 6,504.55 |D0000000C0C00000
V16065 S 1,307.63 | 000000C000000000
V16066 S 4,240.31 | 000CO00000000000
V16067 S 1,250.66 | 00OCCC000000000
V16068 S 6,825.84 | 000C0000000

V16069 S 2,569.32 | 000000000000

V16070 S 3,915.11 | 000000000000

V16071 $ 1,099.12 | 0770000200

V16072 S 3,184.55 |000000020000000
V16073 S 1,393.35 | 0000C00000000000000
V16074 S 2,452.11 | 00000J00000000
V16075 S 3,075.53 | 0000000 220000
V16076 $ 2,146.42 | 000000000000

V16077 S 3,249.69 |CC00000000000
V16078 S 4,794.10 | 0000000000000
V16079 $ 2,682.60 |000CO000000

V16080 S 1,757.67 | 000000000000
V16081 S 49.44 | 0000000000000
V16082 S 3,057.33 |00000000000000
V16083 $ 182.65 | 0000000000000
V16084 S 2,449.31 |00000000000000000
V16085 S 1,166.07 | 00100000000000C0
V16086 S 3,331.85 | 0040000000000
V16087 $ 3,170.82 |0000000000000000000
V16088 S 4,841.15 | 00000000000

V16089 S 4,272.17 | 00000C000000C00000
V16090 S 1,686.76 | 00000000000CC0




CHECK TOTAL VENDOR

V16091 $ 1,706.55 |JO00C0O00OC000O000
V16092 S 1,353.30 | 00000000000

V16093 S 1,419.75 |00 A&000C000000 &
V16094 S 4,117.19 |00000COCCO0

V16095 $ 4,540.93 |0000000000C0
V16096 S 1,216.15 |00000000000000000
V16097 S 1,133.04 |C000000C000000
V16098 S 3,022.15 (00000030000

V16099 5 2,959.51 (0000003000000
V16100 $ 2,008.96 | 0000000000000
V16101 S 3,661.05 |000000000000000
V16102 S 2,540.93 | 00000000000000C00C00000000
V16103 S 3,944.84 | 000000000000C0
V16104 S 2,782.06 |000000OCCCOOO0N
V16105 S 1,000.81 | 0000000000000 4000
V16106 S 1,169.85 | 000000000CCO00C0
V16107 $ 1,334.86 | 000000000C0000000000000
V16108 S 1,066.23 | 0000CO00C0000000
V16109 S 3,683.18 | 00000000000

V16110 $ 3,496.40 |00000000000000
V16111 $ 2,390.23 | 000000000050
V16112 $ 849.49 | 00000000 4&¥00000
V16113 $ 2,589.18 | 000000000000
V16114 $ 2,167.58 |000000000000000
V16115 S 802.82 | 0000000000000
V16116 S 2,754.22 |HOCCCOCCOCCCO0006G
V16117 $ 1,318.11 |00000000000000
V16118 5 2,962.17 | 000000000000
V16119 S 3,114.87 | 00000CCOC0000000
V16120 5 3,084.87 | 0000000000000
V16121 S 3,102.85 |00000000000000
V16122 S 2,912.09 | 0000000000000
V16123 S 1,280.23 | HDOOOOOOOCOCOOOOO
V16124 $ 1,486.72 | 000000000COOO0000
V16125 $ 3,885.90 |00000000000000
V16126 S 1,241.01 |0000000C000000
V16127 S 4,087.46 | 000000 400000000000
V16128 S 1,116.14 |0000000CCO00
V16129 S 3,009.34 | 00000000000
V16130 $ 3,551.33 | 000000000000
V16131 S 3,734.55 | &000000000000
V16132 $ 565.29 | &000000000000
V16133 S 2,711.04 | &0000000J00000
V16134 S 1,343.44 | #000000000000
V16135 S 4,038.15 | &00000000000000
V16136 S 3,419.12 | 000000000000333300

“

810,070.26



€6°56 66°8/Z°¢C

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

89°8Z T9°8Le£¢€e

¢6°9T O£ Ev8

28°/Z 09°8£8°SE

00’ 00°000°ST

€V'98 29°¢88°6T

€9°57 £5°€8€'g

00° 00"

00" 00°ST8‘T

T9'TV Ly 8YT1°SOT

00° 00°

00° 00" 198 ‘€T

00° 00°000°€

00° 00"

68°79 Tl EbS‘8SE

00" 00°00S

00° 00"

00° 00°S80°9€

94720  £5°0LL'96T

€2°6L/ L5°686°STC

Z8TL0T 9L°lvS'ee-

00° 00°

62798  ¥97000°T0C

ang JONVIVE

/aLA J18VIIVAY
TTV.LSdX3

T SH3SWNN 39Vd

T9°TSS 6T
00°

00°

00"

Ly €T IE
0L°TL1
¥0°8£€'8¥
00°
£0°9+0'29
Lv°888'¢
00°

00"
88°045'2¢
00"

00"

00"

00"
9/°S££°99T
00"

00°

00°
08°S€T Ce
T9°986°¢€SE
L6° €V 49T
00°
6L°0€6°¥LY

dXx3
31va Ol dv3A

OV ZvT‘ve
00"

00°

00"

767 9E€ ¥
00"

9E"0Ev ‘L.
00°
S€°609 V9
00°

00°

00°
99°9SE* LY
00°

00"

00"

00°

€STV8Z THY
00°

00"

00"
£9°T98's¢
28°0SC 18Y
62°€SL° 262
00°

LSTETT 064

ONIANVLS1NO
SIDNVHEWNONT

16°698'Y
00"

00"

00"
60°v92°L
00"
ZETEETTIT
00"
€0°ST9'TT
00°

00"

00°
€4°992'9
00"

00"

00"

00"
TL7960' v
00"

00"

00"
89°99¢€'9
¥ ¥59°6L
¥9'550'¢t
00"
78°279°0¢T

STUNLIANIIXT
QoT¥3d

00°€26'SS
00°

00°

00"

00°62T ‘60T
00°STO‘T
00°209°19T
00°000°ST
00°6ES‘9FT
0072211
00"
00°S78'T
00°920'08T
00°

00 ¥98°€T
00°000"¢€
00"

00°+9T 996
00°00S

00°
00°580'9¢
00°892°v5¢
007222 %50°T
00°0S9°¢sh
00"
00°S¥0‘99¥°T
135angd

14043¥ SNLVLS JANLIANIAXI AUVWANS
9/ 1DIWLSIA TO0HDS IODATWINVO

¥ILINID VIGIW/AUVHEI]
ANIWJOTIAIQ WNINDIVUND
ddnsS-anLsS-NOILDIUIQ A¥3S
AS LWLYI¥L IN3ANLS ¥3IHIO
0IANY/AD0IOHLYd HD33dS
SIDIAYIS HLIVIH

SIDIANIS ADNVAIND

Al34vS LIN3aNLs

SIDIAYIS IDONVANILLY

HOS ¥3aWWNS "90dd IVvIDadS
SWYYDOYd ¥IHLO

Y3INYVIT IDVNONYT HSITONI
NOIL1vINAd3 FAILYN¥ALIY
VINVAQYSIA ATIVYNOILYONA3
NOLLYIQaw3x

NOILINIAMILNI ATHv3
INI9VSIQ/M™1DIYLSTY $S3T
ALNTRONYLS/SHILNID Nivad
Q314I9 ANV Q31N3TVL
3-3dd

WY¥90¥d NILYVOUIANIN-IAd
“HYNDVYLXT TOOHDS HOIH
SWVY¥D0¥d TOOHDS HOIH
SWYY90Ud HOIH ~¥C/31a0IW
SWYHD0dd JLVIGIWNILINI
€-% “AMVIWI¥d

- - - - 3UIL - - - - -

e
£TZZ
06TZ
091¢
0ST1¢
0£TC
0¢1¢
STTC
CcITe
09+vT
662T
T6lT
08¢t
LIt
1221
0971
0SZT
T2t
01T
JRANE
OPTT
ZETT
TETT
Tt
[4NNE
IT1T
NOILDNNS

aNNd TvYaNad - Q0T - aNnd

1Z/9 :00IY¥3d SNILNNODIV
,00T ,=puny -ubJo :vIN3LI¥D NOILDIIIS

PT:TZ €T :3AWIL
TZ0Z/62/T0 :3lva
NOILVAVLINId Q¥VONNS



00" 00"

00" 00°0€v ' LET

007 00T 2ZT°

00" 00°0T

00° 00"

00" 00°000°S¥

TZ°89  +0° /8

00" 00"

€2°08  26°89%'TH

IT°% ¥0°S0Z 69T

00°00T 00°

95 ¥ZT 00°'00S‘s-

60°69T €£Z°v90°8ST-

87 €0T Zb 0SS T-

S9°/L 88'90.°'6

v2708  Z8°T/8°V9T

00" 00"

8€°08T LT°899°€Z1-

9€°6TT Z9°8€8°18-

16708 07°6S.°€2

66°SL  6L7ivT'98

19727  SL°TTE‘€E

00" 00°000°8T

00" 00°

00" 00"

angd JDONVIVE

/QlA J9VIIVAY
TIV1SdX3

ra ¥39WNAN 35Vd

00°

00"

00°

00°

00"

00"

¥E£°089

00"

LT €02 20T
96" €679
00"

00"

€8°ZTIE 0OV
S9°892°22
SP 6ET 6T
€0°0v9°9.2
00"

65 ¥9¥‘€L
L8 VLT EST
08°2.6'00T
8y TSE"€9T
T9°906‘8
00°

00"

00"

dX3
A1va Ol ¥vaA

00"

00"
88°29T°¢
00"

00"

00"
29°06T°T
00"
98°550°19
00"
00°2.2'z
00'6¥L' LT
Ov " StS ' 9ve
22°690'9C
297285 ' b1
01695 ' ¥T¥
00"
8S°790°+02
SLT€8% ' TSE
00°0€T
££°9€9°60T
#9198

00"

00"

00"

ONIANVLSLNO
SIONVIEGWNINT

00"

00"

00*

00"

00"

00°

90" 0.1
00"
8622601
00"

00"

00"
0.°6.¢
£€2°89b°‘¢
€2°LT72'Y
09" ££9°6S
00"
¥1°502°ZT
8p " TLE0€
08 €vZ'¥
868002
16°¥29
00"

00"

00"

SIYNLIANILX3I
aoI¥ad

00"
00°0EP°LET
00°€9T ¢
00°0T

00°
00°000"St
00°€bL‘e
00"
007822607
00°669°SST
00°zL2'ey
00°6vZ ' ¥1
00°v62°82C
00°882°2L¥
00" 62V €Y
00°T88°SS8
00°
00°6S8°€ST
00°0z8'eey
007298 ¥eT
00°9£7°65¢€
00°T60°‘EP
00°000°8T
00"

00°

139ang

1¥0d3¥ SNLVLS FUNLIANILXI AYVWWNS
9/ 1DIULSIA M00HDS IDATHNVO

YIASNVYL 3IDTAY3S Q004
YIASNVAEL LNIWIDVI4IY Sng
1830 WY3L-9NOT
S3TLITIOVA

13N AL34VS ALINNWWOD
SATLIATIOV 3Uv413IM
SIITAYIAS Fdvd13IM

WYID0Ud LNIW3YILIY "ddnsS
SADTAYAS ADOTONHOIL

OAS LY0dSNvdl 43 TvID3adS
SAdIYL IT9VSUYNGWITY-NON
SdI¥l Q1314 3719vSINaGWI3y
DIAYIS NOILVYAMO ITIDIH3IA
NOILDIUIA VAUV IDIAMIS
SANNOUD 40 d3TANdN‘“IUVYD
DAS S90719 40 d3INdN‘IAVD
NOILD3¥IA VIV IDIAU3S
S3IDIAY3S VISIS

AY¥3S TVdIDNI¥d 40 IDIS40
NIWQY 3AILND3X3 AIHLO
LNIANTINT¥IANS 40 IDII40
SIDIAYIS 03 40 QUvog
3A3Q d4VLS TTVYNOILDONYLSNI
ONILSIL ANV INJWSSISSY

SADTAYIS VIQIWILINW

- - - - -3FUIL-- - - -

0¢es
STZS
0TTS
000¥
06E€E
Tote
09¢€¢€
004¢
099¢
855¢
14314
€552
444
18S5¢
EvSe
[4474
T¥Se
(7474
0Tve
6¢€EC
Tege
(84
ovee
oeee
£22¢

NOILDONNA

aNNd TVH3IN3d - 00T - aNnd

1¢/9 :00I¥3d OHNILNNODDV
,00T ,=punj -ubJo :yINILI¥D NOILDATAS

PL:TZ-€T -3WIL
T202/62/10 :3iva
NOLLYWY.INId O¥VONNS



8¢°9L

8¢°9¢

00°

ang
/adA

€

€0°T68°'8Vv6°T

£0°T68°8¥6°T
00°
00°Z¥8'86¢€

JONVIVE
J78VIIVAVY

TTIV1SdX3

SYIGWNN 3OV

T6°926°6v€°T

T6°9Z6°6¥£‘T
00"
00°

dx3
31va 0L ¥v3A

90°ZTE LT6 €

90"2TE LT6 E
00~
00°

ONIANVLSLINO
SIDONVIEGWNIONIT

Tz Z82'T6Y

Tz z82Z'T6Y
00"
00"

STANLIANIIX3I
QoI¥3d

00°0€T‘9TZ 8

00°0€T‘9TZ‘8
00"
00°Z¥8°86¢€
135ang

1¥0d3¥ SNLVLS IFANLIANIAXI AUVWANS
9/ 1DTHLSTIA TO0HIS IDAIWIVO

130d3d TvioLl

aNNd TVYINEID

ONVIVE aNNd dN3 dOdddVNN
ADNIADNILNQGD ONILVAILO

- 3UTL - - - - -

avioL
0004

01T
NOILDNNA

anNnd VHaNaS - Q0T - aNNnd

12/9 :Q0TIY3d SNILNNODDV

,00T ,=punj - ubdo :¥INILTYD NOILDIT3S

PI:TZIET :INIL
T202/62/10 :31va
NOLLVAVINId QYVONNS



[(o1°Tr2'8¢) $ (oT'Tve'se) § Ay ‘s8puseolet10z/82/2
|(tz0z97) S {1£'029°T) S AnD "93preo|6102/82/2
|(tovse‘69) S (10" +5€'69) S £1000 10Ad|6T0T/VT/T
8L°L80'ET $ 8/'L80°€ST & 61-994 d191|6102/82/T
|(sv"9sv°89) S {S¥'951°89) $ 71000 1oMd|6T0Z/TE/T
|(oo'ssz’z) $ (00°s82'7) S € BI243WIWO) 31ZUIW|6TOTZ/TE/T
7626591 S Z6'TES9T 61-uer d191|6102/1€/T
|{as 008'66) $ (95°008°66) S 11000 10A148T0Z/61/2T
(00°86) $ (00°86) S T90¢ suiquin|d apessed|3T0z/TT/ZT
ST LEP'ET $ STLEP'ET  $ 81-22Q dion|8Toz/1E/TT
8E°6SYET S BEBSYET 81-AON d197|810Z/0€/11
{29'196'69) $ (29'796'69) S 0T000 J0AId|8T0Z/9T/TT
96'168'€T S 96'T63CT S 81130 d191|800Z/1€/01
(29'05.°9€) $ (z905£°9€) S 60000 10AId |8T0Z/0E/0T
{SLYTL'PS) $ (SL¥T1Z'7S) S 420000 10AId|8T0Z/22/0T
{00'2£9°€T) S (oo'zz9'er) ¢ [e11awwo) 31ZudNIN|8T0Z/ET/0T
(00°524) S (00°52£) S 90tS suiquinid s19y101g|8107/8/0T
(86'TOS EF) S {86°TOS'EY) S 80000 10A1d|8T02/0€/6
(0E'6£1°ET) $ (0€'6LY"ET) $ £0000 10Md|8102/0€/6
66'15E'2T S 66'TSECT  § g1-dag d191)8102/0¢/6
LL6V0'TT S LL6P0'ZT § 81-8ny d191)8102/1€/8
{00'rb vT) $ (oo'stt'vT) 4 eIDJaWWO) aizuayd |810z/0Z/8
0L°€9%'CT S 0L€9%'2T  $ 8T-IN[ d191|8102/1€/2
(£€'€08°T€) S {£€°€08'TE) S 90000 10A1d|8102/0€/9
97'88S'1 $ 97'8852T 810 sunf d191]810Z/0€/9
(¥8'602°LT) $ (¥8'60Z°LT) $ S0000 10Md|8102/9Z/9
{re'€2s0¢E) S (re €249 0E) S #0000 10A1d|8T0Z/9/9
{00°59) s [(00°59} $ uozewv|810Z/92/9
65'789°TT S 65789 TT § 8107 Aey dI91|8T0Z/TE/S
(¥8 LYE'vT) S {8 LvE've) S 70000 10Ald|8T0Z// /S
£2°209'TT 3 £2°709'TT  $ 8T0T udy d191|810z/0E/Y
(ot'eve've) $ {oveve've) S £0000 10AId|8T0Z/0E/Y
[€°€9/°8 S LEEIL'8  § 8T0C YdJe diD1|8r0z/1E/E
|{oo-000°sT) S (00°000'ST) S 26£992 s,Apoo|gtoz/zz/c
|(sz'8ev's) $ (8T'8EV’L) S 10000 10Md|8T0T/L/€
{(oz'00t) $ (0z'00%) S ELT6S9EYL [euinor Ajleg|gtoz/L /€
{{oo'stT) $ (00°sTT) S YrvSEIEYL [euinor Ajlea|810z/4/€
{00°sZt) S {00'SZY) S S8ZY8TL sulystiqnd p1ens|8Toz/L/€
{00°050'8) $ {00°050°8) S 1-T1GSL€99 \ueg suoiZ|8T0z/L /€
(00°0€ET) S {00'0€T) S 3ulysijgnd p1eno|8Toz//7/C
{00°007) S {00°007) S Aedaig uo3a10 Jo eIS|8T0T/vT/T
(00°99) S {00°99) S oyYd3 "IN pesa|810oz/0T/T
(0z'19s) S (0Z7'195) S LYSLTSEVL |eusnor Ajieg|/10z/12/11
(06'652) S (06°652) S 98€97SEL lewnor Ajlea|£10z/12/11
€£'STT'895'0T S asuadx3 uonRINIISUO) sa2IMS 3y | Buisiuaapy 5150) Suisop) 159431U) 2210AU| JOpuap pied 21eqg
JUMQ ISHA
00°000°000'% $ Jueis WIDSO
€/'GT1'8959 $ Spasd0Id puog
SaIARDY/spalold 1LIsIg Jooyds adpije0 aNO8 8T0Z




(e¥"¥2STT) $ {ev'vTsTT) $ 10Md|6T0Z/8T/TT
T0'6TEL S T06TEL  § d197|6102/05/11
{00°5T) s |(00°sT) $ 3a0|6107/1£/0T
|log'zsz'Te) S (08'252'T?) S 10Ad|6T0Z/12/0T
|(00°258°509) $ (00'798'509) $ [B1243WwWO) 31ZUININ|6T0Z/TT/0T
{{00°97) s |(00°97) S $20135 0ju| WLD|6T0Z/TT/0T
|(z6°6€€'67) S |(ze'6EE'6T)  § a1u10d YoM |6T0Z/TT/0T
£€'80/ L S €€'80L°L S di91|6107/1€/01
£8'80€9 S £8'80€9 $ dI91|6102/0¢/6
(S8 Zv1'T) S |(sgzvt'T) S jodaQ SWOH|6T0Z/0E/6
(00"88) S [(0088) S 134]6102/0¢/6
(T9°€zE’sE) $ (19°cee’ee) S 10Md|6T0Z/91/6
(00°0S) S |(o0°09) S SIS OJu} WDI6T0Z/ZT/6
(00°66T'8£2°2) S (00°661°8£4°7) S [e1213WW0) BIZUSIN|6T0Z/£2/6
0£°186'CT S 0L'1862T AN} dI916T0Z/TE/8
00'0% $ | ooor S 3ao|6107/1€/8
{00810°£T) S |(oo'gToZT) § 30vd|610Z/22/8
(v z8v'TT) S (vLz8v'2e) S 1onid[6107/L2/8
{00°£¥1°€60°T) $ (00°2¥1'€60°T) S [e1aJaWwo) 31ZuaXON|6T0Z/£2/8
{0£°8) $ [{oz'8) S Jodaq a2130|6102/07/8
{00'z8T) s [{oo'zgt) S $921A3S ojul WD 610Z/0T/8
{05°8T1°S) S [(0s'8TT’S) ) 134|6102/0Z/8
{oo21€) $ |(o02T€) S $90103S oju| WD |6T0T/VE/L
T0'870'TT S T10870TT  § dI91|6102/1¢/L
{00°050'T) s |[(00"050°T) S SjIqoN UIBISIM|6TOZ/0E/9
{58'09%77) ) (58°091'7Z) S 10MId|6T0Z/0E/9
{00z62°€) S |[(00'z6z'E) S [BIJ3WWO) AZUIN|6TOZ/0E/9
{009££°229) S (00'9sg'tz9) [BI2J3WWO) AZUPIW|6TOZ/0E/9
{bv'£26°0T) s [{00'sT2) S (r¥'212°02) S 10AMd|6T0Z/LT/9
(10°868°¢) S [(10'868°¢) S ueg Jauueg|6T0Z/0T/9
(£1°020'T) s [{z1T°0z0'T) S uozewy|610z/2/9
(00°6€528) S {00'6€5'23) S [BI43WIWO) 31ZUBNIN(6T0Z/L/9
$6'S09°ET S G6'S09'CT d191]6102/0¢/9
|{se'z9t'sT) S {se'zat'sT) S 91000 LOAId|6T0Z/02/S
J(00'szg) s |(00°szg) $ 3Q0|610Z/1E/S
9€'676€T S 9E'6V6'ET S dI91|610Z/TE/S
89'96¥°€T $ 89'96%'€T  $ d191|6102/05/%
(L' 2€T°T€) S (LvL€2'T€) S STO00 10AId|6T0Z/9Z/¥
|(o00zt) S |(oo0Z¥) $ jao|et0z/1/¥
(00°8¥T‘29) S {o0'8y1'29) § [e1213Ww) 31ZUaXIN|6T0Z/LT/Y
(8t°S) $ (8tS) $ AD ‘a8puxeo|sT0z/s/Y
69'2S8'ET $ 69°ZS8'ET  $ dI9|610Z/1€/€
{£8'187'9T) S {£8'18Z°9T) S ¥T000 10n1d|610Z/52/€
(£6'869°£S) S (£6°869°LS) S Aud ‘a8pLxeQ|6102/82/T
€4°ST1'895'0T $ asuadx3 uol3oNIIsu0) SaOIAIRS 3/ |  Suistuaapy $150) Suisop) 15249 9DI0AUY| J0pusA pied a1eq
J3UMQ ISIAI
00'000'000°F $ RIS WIDSO
€£°ST1'895'9 S spaa20.d puog
S3aIAIOY /s13f04d 1P1UIsIa j0oYyas a8pLnjeQ aNOd 810




8E'SOV'T S 8E°S0P'T d191]ozoz/0¢/6
l(zT€sw) S |{cT°gsy) S 18311109]3 Jeg Aeas|0z0z/1e/6
(86'9¥9°£T) S (86'9¥9°LT) S 10AId|ozoz/vZ/6
(86'615'T) S |{86'615'T) S s|ueg Jauueg|ozoz/vT/6
(00'zze'€Es) S (00'zze'ees) S jeIJswwo) ANZUdHIN|0Z0Z/¥T/6
¥6'2LL'T S v6'ZLLT d191|0z0z/15/8
(00°'£20'ST) S (00°£z0'ST) S 10AId|0z0Z/12/8
(00'907°S.T) S {o090z'ssT) fe124awwo) s1zZudNdIN0Z0zZ/TE/L
70°98€°C S ¥0'98€C d191|ozoz/TE/L
|{z2£90'9¢) S (e2'290'97) S 1OAIdJ0T0Z/0€/9
(00°5£8°652) S (00'sgg'6S2)  § [eidJaWIWO) 31ZUBNIN |0Z0Z/0E/9
(00°58S) $ |(00°58S) S 3uiquinid ay1ed |0Z0Z/0€/9
(#0°281°T) S |(v0'£81'T) S uozewy|0z0Z/0£/9
(££°20¢) s |{££°L0L) S Yd 38puxe0|0z0z/0€/9
00°'£16°C 3 00°£16°C d191J0Z02/0€/9
{0555 9T) $ {05'¥5591) S JOAd|0Z02/21/9
{o0'€82'T6) S (00'€8sc16)  § [e1213WWO0D BIZUINIIN|0Z0Z/TT/9
{ov'519') S [{or'aT9’s) $ Anjerdads jooyds|ozoz/v/9
(05°505°52) S (05'505°52) $ 30Md |0Z0Z/v/9
91795 S 91'795'€ d191020z/1€/S
{00'c62'/1T) S (ooe6T’21T) [212J3WWO) AIZUNIN[0Z0Z/6T/S
{00887 0ET) S (00'88Z°0ET) S jelaJawiwo) a1ZusMdN|0Z02/21/S
68°T16'Y S 68TV6'Y | d1971020z/0¢/¥
(00 zL¥) S |(00°22%) 3 [e12JaWwW0) ZUNIW|020Z/v2 /v
{6Z'659'8) S {S7°6598) S 1ond|0z0z/rZ/y
{00'v62) S |(00'v62) S $21U0.399]3 pajesdanu||0z0z/ve /v
£5°9T€9 S £5°92€°9 dI91)0z0Z/1E/€
(00°696'v7) S [(00'696'F) S [e121aWwo) 31ZUNIN|0Z0Z/vZ/E
(06'315°g) $ [{06°815'8) S Ayje1dads j0oyds|0z0z/v7/€
(os'zTL'e) $ {osziL'e) S 10Md|0Z0C/v2/E
{00°2£2'3%2) S (00'2sz'8vT)  § [e124awwo) 31ZUdNIIN|0Z0Z/9T/€
{00'005'7) s [(00005°2) S noajozoz/tt/c
15'588'9 S 155889 4191]0z0z/62/¢C
{(sz15€s) S (sz'1se’e) S 10Md|0202/T2/C
{00°25.'vT) S (oozsL've) S |EI2ISWIWO] AZUINIIA0ZOZ/0T/T
L9LETL S L9LETL _ d191]0z0z/1E/1
(00'sL¥'3¢€) S (oo'ssv'8g) [eloJawwo) a1zuaN0z0z/0€/1
(€1°S0£'Y) 3 (€T°S0E"Y) S 10Md|0Z0Z/0E/T
|(oz'sTi'T) S |(oz'sty'T) S spuig 383pna|0z0z/9t/1
(0s'951) $ [{0s'9sT) S jueg Jauuea|ozoz/zT/T
(10°029'vT) S (T0°0zZ9'vT) S 10n1d[0702/6/1
Y0'v16'9 3 ¥0'v169 di91|610Z/1E/CT
(00'T¥S'9TZ) S (co'tvsote) S [e1243WwWo) 31zuadN|6TOZ/LT/TT
{00°$TZ'91E) S (00'stz’otTE) S [BI243WWO) AZUMNINI6TOT/ST/TT
€£°'STT'895°01 $ ssuadxa uoIINASUG) S0IMBS A/Y | Buisiuanpy $350) BuIsop) 153181y 9010AY| Jopuap pred aleqg
13uUMQ ISIA
00'000°000Y $ wein WSO
£4°STT'895°9 $ $P2220id puog
S31IAIY/5193[04d PUISIA |00Yds a8pLNeO ANOE 8T0Z




_ 02'190'92 S aduejeg pun4 puog pajedoljeury _ 0Z/T€/2T Jo sy
(00°062°9) S uawdinba yas| /josewip
(00"0Z8'vE) S S123207 $6°££0°SL9 S
00°000°009 S uels yasn 86'6vSL S W TZ-0T
(00°05£) S $23YJ punoidyoeg 8L°'TST'¥8 S W 0Z-6T
(00629) S d4nHuINy qe| 2U31IS €€°6£T°29T S W| 6T-8T
(00°0000%) S AousBunuon ssump St'9E9 vy S W1 8T-LT
(00°000'52) $ papasu susisaq 00°000°000t S WIDSO
(s2:z82'sg) S 0Z/€T/TT JO se Suiulewal adue|eq 10213U00 J0Ald €/£°GTT1'895‘9 S spaedoid puog
- S {papuny juesd JWsIBS MOU) JOOY WINLOUPNY WAD HSIO (06'9%0'StS'T) S dx31Z-07
(00'¥TOETL) 3 OT# 02 NIYL 0Z/0E/TT JO Se daue|eq [eIDIaUWOD SIZUNIN HSIO (zTeeL'Lto'L) ) dx3 0z-6T
(00°1EL'69T) ) (6% 0D noud) 0Z/0E/TT 4O SE 9oUBjE] [EIDISWWOY AZUNIN S0 (££7966'L9%'T) S dx3 61-8T
(e'8€8°09T) S dx3 81-/T
S6°LL0°SL9 $ (s8'sor'zog) ¢ (ze's5£°999'8) $ (S8'9ps'L6T°T) $ (o0£Ls6'Tt) $ (00°0SZ'ET) $ ¥S°/.S'867 $
{00°618"€12) S (ooe18'evz) S [eIdIBWWO) BZUANIW|TZ0Z/TZ/T
{5Z2'959't) S (57°959'F) S 1oald|TzoZ/TZ/T
{05'961°9) $ (05'961°9) $ loald|oz0z/TE/ 2T
(00361 26T) S |(oo'g6T'Z6T) S jeI2I3WWo) 31zZudXdNJ0Z0z/0T/Z1
18'80L $ 18'807 S dI191]0z0z/0E/TT
{88'917'¢) $ (88°912°7) S 3oMd[0202/0€E/TT
18°9/2°T S 18°9/2'T § d197J0Z0Z/1€/0T
{00°£20'62T) S {00'LzO'6CT) S [el21awwWo) a1zuaXdN|0z0Z/TE/0T
{0v'¥89°€T) $ {ov'89'€T) S | loatdjozoz/ez/01
(00°T¥9'16T) S {00'TP9'T6T) S {e121awwo) 1zuaNdW|0z0z/0T/0T
(2 16¥%'T) S |(s£°161'T) S Awndas mNd|ozoz/oT/0T
{0 TPY'TT) S [(vo'Trp'tT) $ aspeo ‘AudJ0z0z/L/01
€L°STTI‘895°01 S Jsuadx3 uol1anIIsuo) sa01Mes 3/ | Suisipaapy $150D SulsoD PRI 210AU| JOpUdA pied aieqg
1aUuMO) ISIAI
00°000'000'y S WweIn WINSO
€4°STT'895'9 S spaanold puog
SalNAIRY /syraload _ 11s1a jooyds a8pLyeo aNosg 8102




Oakridge High School Student Body Fund

BALANCE SHEET
As of January 31, 2021

TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
OJSH ASB 516.55
21st Century Grant 0.00
Drama Club 118.92
Total 21st Century Grant 118.92
Academics 19.32
Alt Ed 13.30
Annual -2,754.00
Arnt -117.21
Athletics 0.00
ASB Card Fees 880.00
Contracted -13,550.00
Entry Fee Expense -2,133.63
Gate Income 6,224.31
OHS Sport Fees 5,105.00
OJH Sport Fees 4,960.00
Other Expense -7,434.45
Other Income 500.00
PE Uniforms 98.00
Travel & Meals 203.50
Total Athletics -5,147.27
Athletics Restricted 196.63
Batting Cages 88.21
Hurdles 100.00
Total Athletics Restricted 384.84
Athletics Rooter Bus 485.49
Baseball Club 4,640.49
Basketball Boys 3,016.68
Basketball Girls 2,370.13
Bottle Filling Station 950.00
Careers 237.26
Chess Club 43.16
class of 2020 259.87
class of 2021 3,115.75
class of 2022 253.70
Class of 2023 217.70
Class of 2025 36.60
CMN 2,491.83
College Testing 1,023.33
Cross Country 3,682.92
Culinary 913.51

Cash Basis Tuesday, February 2, 2021 10:58 AM GMT-08:00 1/4



Oakridge High School Student Body Fund

BALANCE SHEET
As of January 31, 2021

TOTAL
DC Bound 4,140.77
Drama 2,925.86
Entry Fee Income 500.00
Football Club 4,832.86
FRC 3,367.15
Golf Club 250.00
Greenhouse 660.05
Honor Society 2,298.28
Industrial Arts
Wood Shop 10.00
Total Industrial Arts 10.00
Key Club 431.54
Lego/Robotics 448.53
Library -104.69
Life Skills 47.06
Math 280.00
Music 763.00
Non-Sufficient Funds 89.23
Oifice Soda Machine 229.49
OJH Boys Basketball 415.04
OJH C or Better 621.36
OJH Cross Country Team 17.50
OJH Football Club 1,128.18
OJH Girls Basketball -941.13
OJH Lifeskills 20.00
OJH Recess 143.13
OJH Ski Club 593.00
OJH Student Council 743.88
OJH Student Store 110.32
OJH Track 500.58
OJH Volleybali Club 1,552.74
OJH Wrestling Club 552.67
OJHS Miscellaneous 3,316.35
PEWT 83.50
Positive Behavior(WMS) 87.00
Principal, Office of 69.26
Radio Club 797.01
Rich Bray Memorial Scholarship Fund 1,175.74
Robotics 713.17
Scholarships 0.00
Community Health 200.00
Double Trouble Scholarship 250.00
Elaine Taylor Memorial 250.00
Fine Memorial 1,300.00

Cash Basis Tuesday, February 2, 2021 10:58 AM GMT-08:00 2/4



Oakridge High School Student Body Fund

BALANCE SHEET
As of January 31, 2021

TOTAL
GRAM'S 1,000.00
Kiwanis Scholarship 3,500.00
Oakridge/Westfir Chamber 49.23
Peterson Memorial Scholarship 820.00
Schroeder Gangstad 500.00
Senior Social Club 1,400.00
Total Scholarships 9,269.23
Screenprinting 206.59
SCUBA 381.98
Softball Club 4,361.55
Spanish Club 46.12
Student Council 1,836.28
Teachers
Bakken/Social Studies 260.15
Batten/Spanish 316.46
DeBoer/Language Arts 1,217.51
Doyle/Pre K 150.00
Frederic/Art 882.05
FujiiMath 595.56
Hale/JH Sped 600.00
Hale/S Sped 1,034.21
Harrison, Heather/ Business 300.00
Johnson 281.28
Lipe/Science 172.75
Meyers/SPED 708.49
Nguyen/Math and Science 777.49
Rosenblum/Science 542.29
Schmidig/LA 680.60
Scott/Counselor 1,103.83
Skordahl/Alt Ed 452.36
Sokolowski, R/Math 300.00
Sokolowski/Social Studies 243.12
Wilson/Music 648.86
Yarbrough/CTE 472.98
Total Teachers 11,739.99
Technology 824.36
Textbook Fund 1,040.40
Title X (Homeless) 100.00
Towels/PE 95.00
Track Club 2,254.85
Volleyball Club 2,905.26
Camp 132.75
T-Shirts 260.00

Cash Basis Tuesday, February 2, 2021 10:58 AM GMT-08:00 3/4



Oakridge High School Student Body Fund

BALANCE SHEET
As of January 31, 2021

TOTAL
Total Volleyball Club 3,298.01
Warrior Project 32.17
Wood Shop 200.00
Wrestling Club 3,665.33
Y.T.P. Store 40.00
Yarbrough/Warrior Woodshop 189.75
Yearbook 193.97
Ziegler Memorial 13,590.00
Zoology 169.17
Total OJSH ASB 103,176.05
Total Bank Accounts © $103,176.05
Total Current Assets $103,176.05
TOTAL ASSETS $103,176.05
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
~ Total Liabilities
Equity
Opening Bal Equity 41,144.01
Retained Earnings 53,656.73
Net Income 8,375.31
~ Total Equity $103,176.05
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY '$103,176.05

Cash Basis Tuesday, February 2, 2021 10:58 AM GMT-08:00

4/4



Oakridge School District

Monthly Enrollment Report

September October November  December January February March May
2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 April 2021 2021
Oakridge Elementary School
Lifeskills 6 5 5 5
Kindergarten
D Harriger 22 21 21 22 22
E. Gardner 21 22 23 22 21
Total Kindergarten 0 43 49 49 49 48 0 0 0 0
Grade 1
Shafor i3 15 15 16 16
Maher 15 13 15 16 16
Total Grade 1 Enroliment 0 28 28 30 32 32 0 0 0 0
Grade 2
Bradbeer 23 22 22 21 21
McGill 22 20 20 21 21
Total Grade 2 Enrollment 0 45 42 42 42 42 0 0 0 0
Grade 3
Durham 22 20 20 20 21
Standley 21 21 21 21 21
Total Grade 3 0 43 41 41 41 42 0 0 0 0
Grade 4
Shaw 17 15 15 16 15
Tysoe 16 16 16 16 17
Total Grade 4 Enrollment 0 33 31 31 32 32 0 0 0 0
Grade 5
Howard 25 25 25 24 23
D Gordon 25 25 25 24 24
Total Grade 5 Enrollment 0 50 50 50 48 47 0 0 0 0
Grade 6
Wilkinson 23 20 21 22 20
Saxon 23 22 22 22 22
Total Grade 6 Enrollment 0 46 42 43 44 42 0 0 0 0
Oakridge Elementary School 0 288 283 286 288 285 0 0 0 0
12019-20 Enrollment 325 326 320 320 318 310 309 300 309 1Y
Oakridge Junior High
(includes students in the Altemative Ed Program)
Grade 7 Enrollment 52 51 52 54 54
Grade 8 Enrollment 36 35 35 35 36
0 88 86 87 89 90 0 0 0 0
Oakridge Junior High School 0 88 86 87 89 90 0 0 0
[2019-20 Enrollment. 83 91 €2 82 82 7 80 50 80 80
Oakridge High School
(includes students in the Alternative Ed Program)
Grade 09 Enrollment 41 41 41 41 40
Grade 10 Enrollment 48 48 48 49 49
Grade 11 Enrollment 35 36 35 35 34
Grade 12 Enrollment 34 32 29 28 26
Oakridge High School 0 158 157 153 153 149 0 0 0
2019-20 Enrollment ie3 163 160 159 139 157 159 159 159 159
Students Transported out of area on Daily Basis
{Not included in other totals)
Total District
Enrollment 2020-21 0 534 526 526 S30 524 0 0 0 0
Enrollment 2019-20 572 571 263 562 560 S48 551 51 551 851




SE LIV LLS awy siyj Je Jeok jse
0S'¥61'2$ sjooyos ||y aouejeg ¥Z'651'GLeS
00°0$ HSro
00'0% $30
00'0%$ $30
00'0% HSrO
00°0% $30
0 HSro saouadxy ue|d umo( pusds
vzZ'ssl'sLes yjuouw jualind 1o} asuejeg pun4
Zr'128's$ lesj jseq 30 05’761 2r$ souejeg weibold YIUOW Jualin)
86'669°L£$- eouejeg weiboid S30 v2'096'C.L $ (pejewnsa) aouejeg pung bujuuibag
- ¢ (every's)  $ (bTveo's) $ (82/z.'¢) ¢ (062eL's) § (89'1e'9) § (12918%) ¢ (v0'8LOC) § eoueleg Buipu3|
- $ €L6vr's $ 82v29's $ STlLL'S $ ¥62ELS $ zllee'9 $ Sz9L8C $ 608L0C  $ S1v.101 ISNIIXT
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ o028, ¢ - $ ov9/sena
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 9l p/salipowwio)
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 0G/Poo4
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $  s.00p/sayddng/sieusiely
- $ ol6eg'l $ orece’t ¢ o9rece’t $ 9rs6ee’t $ 9resc’t $ 9lLe6es’t $ oorece’t  $ $,00€/s9seyaInd J8Yl0
- $ 6£v.6 $ 61896 $ 0906 $ 2GPL'L $ 16959k ¢ 96€0E  $ O0E00E $  s.00z/sweueg eshoidws
- $ sevElE $ eeole’e ¢ 68908 § 995¥9'C § SpGEe’e § €998 $ €08 $ S.00)/s8liees
Asenigo4 Aienuep Jaqwsoag laquwanoN 1890}00 Jaqueydeg SASNAJX3,
- $ - $ $00 $ Jv68e’L $ v00 $ #0'0 $ 00 $ S00 $ STVLOL INNIAIN
- $ - $ - $ evese’l $ - $ - $ - $ - $ J8Ul0/uydie [00YdS
- $ - $ ¥00 $ $00 $ 00 $ 0v00 $ 0v00 $ 0500 $ JUN02JY yueg/saislu|
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $  juswasinquisy d40VD
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ JuswasINquidy el
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ safes ysen
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - ¢  eoueleg yse) Bujuuibeg
iAleniga Asenuer Jaquasaq JaquianoN 1aqoiop Jaquieydeg )snBny Ain ANNIATY)
jooyog Aseyuswa|g abpue

12-020Z JES A [00YS
WYHOO0Yd LSYXYIHE/HONNT TOOHOS
9/ "ON 1oH}sI [00ydS 9BplNeO



muadxg uejd umoq puadsg
13jualing Joj a3uejeg pung
1g wesboud Yjuo yuaring
1) @oue|eg pund Buiuuibag

(86'669°1E) § - S $iwth g ' = $ aouefeq buipus]
99'680°€E $ - $ - $ - $ - $ S1v101 3SNIdX3
00°.8. $ - $ - $ = $ - $ or9/seng

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 91 p/SSHPOWIWIOD
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 0S¥/pood
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $  s00p/saddng/sieusiep
€8l $ - $ - $ - $ - $ $,00€/s9sey2ind Jayi0
126’9 $ - $ - $ - $ - $  s,00g/syyouag @akojdwg

/82009 § - $ - $ - $ - $ $,001/S8LeleS

el sunp Aepy Iudy yosep m@w&zmn_xmm
8968€t § - $ - $ - $ - $ SIV.LOL INNIATY
er'68e’t $ 0 - $ - $ - $ - ¢ 18U10/U21BIN\ |0042S
STAl $ - $ - $ - $ - $ JUNOD2Y YuegAsalau|

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $  Juswesinquiey d40VD
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ JuswasInquiay ajels
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ soleg ysen
- $ - $ - $ - ¢ - g aoueleg ysen buiuuibag
ejoL sunp Aen udy yosep INNIATY

[ooyas Aueyuswa|g 8bpleQ
AVYO0Yd LSVINYIHG/HONNT TOOHIS
9/ "ON Jols1q looyos abplxeQ



£L°€Zy'0es- iea\ 3se] SHroO/SHO

8Y'v68'cL$ souejeg weibold SHrO/SHO

3 $ 8972E6'SL  § ¥6'099'EL $ 06'€SSOL $ 66'86L'6L $ (OvLLYE'S) § OVISLLL  § 1LLL€9T $ ooueleg Buipu3|

- $ ze'gz9'sl $ velevlL $ 6SlceCl $ 6S8¥ETZ $§ OPP'09Z'0C $ €€'990'CC  $ 86'CLS'LE $ STV.LOL 3SN3IdX3

- $ - $ - $ $ - $ - $ 05°/8¢ $ $ 0r9/senQ

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 9l p/ssnipocwiwod

- $ veoezLlL $ 891v6's $ 112082 $ ZTLOSLOL $ 6¥LE0'LL $ vO'60ZOL $ 6v¥L06°CL $ 0S¥/pood

- $ Levez'L $ 999/ ¢ 16'6lS $ ¥8°0.L ¢§ oOL9c $ 216901 $ viosy $  s,00p/selddng/sielelep

- $ 9s'6€€l $ oseee’l $ 9r6e€'t $ 9r6€e'L $ 9L6e€’L $§ 9l'6£e’L $ zeovrcl $ $,00e/s9sBYIINd JBUYIO

- $ 95°1L¥9 $ 089299 $ I¥'¥89 $ o6ve8 $ SL'86EC $ 60'89L'Y $ 08LLL6 $ s,00z/s)youag aakojdwy
T $ sroail'e $ ¥riie’e $ vE0.6'C $ L6292t $ vEVIZS $ L6589  $ €0¥SS'L $ S.001/ssueleg
Aienige4 bm:cm_.. hmnEmown_ laquisnoN Jaqojo0 ._wnEmEmw Jsnbny Iy SASNIJXI|

- $___ = $

- $ 00°196°cE $ 8286062 $ 6vG/86C $ 8SIvS'Ly $ 00€6Ly'vL § omp L18'7€ § 0690SL'0OP $ STV.LO.L INN3IATY

- $ $ - ¢ evese’L ¢ - $ - $ $ G90SL'Op $ dS4S/UdieN |ooyos

- $ - $ ¥00 $ S00 $ v00 $ 0500 $ 0vo0 $ 0ov00 $ JunoddY queg/sala|

: $ - $ - $ $ - $ - $ $ $ Juswesinquiey d40VD

- $ 00195ce $ ¥2'860°'6Z $ 1098v'8C $ VSLVS'LY $ SZ6LY'YL $ 69.L8VE  $ - $ juswissinquiisy slelg

- $ - $ $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ ssesg yseD

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - ¢ oouejeg yse) Buluuibeg
Atenige4 Kenuep laquiadag  JagLUSAON 18qoj0 1equisjdes Jsnbny Anp ANNIATY|

looyds UBIH Jolunp aBpLeO/100yas YbiH 8bplxeQ
12-0Z0Z JE8A |00Y0S
NYHO0Yd LSY4MYIHE/HONNT TOOHDS
9/ "ON Jouisiq jooyos abplyeQ



8r'v68'eL § - e §aT $ . - $ aouejeg Buipud|
65'6.S'Shl $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SIV.LOL ISNIJX3
0G'/8¢ $ - $ - $ - $ - $ ov9/senQg
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ glp/seipowwo)
l2€82'6L $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 05¥/poo
erieoe ¢ - $ - $ - $ - $  s00p/senddng/sieusiepy
gr'asr'le $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 8,00¢/saseyaind JBLjo
L11z188L § - $ - $ - $ - $ s,00z/sHouag aakodwy
vi'gle'oz § - $ - $ - $ - $ S.001/ssLeleg
B0l aunr Aep ludy yolen S3ISNAdX3]
L0°0.7'6l2$ - $ - $ - $ - $ SIVLOL INNIATA
80°0VS'LY $ - $ - $ = $ - $ dSdS/MAEN |00Y2S
920 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ JUNO20Y yuegpsale|
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ Juswasinquisy d40VD
€L6c6'LL1L S - $ - $ - $ - $ juswiesinquiiay siels
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ seleg ysen

- $ - $ - $ - $ - ¢ 9ouejeg ysed Buuuibag
[B10L 2HD Aen Iudy Uoleny ANNIAIY|

jooyos yBiH solung abplye/jooyas ybiH ebpeQ

NYE90Hd 1SYAMYIHE/HONNT TOOHOS
9/ "ON 10M}sIQ [00Y9S 36pLYEQ



—

2 $ ggesr'ol § 06'1L2°2 § croelzi $ 6099v'cl § (282LLTh)$ 6L'GE6'8  $ L9%6L9 $ FONVIvE ONIANI

- $ Sb220€C $ Zrocell $ YSpES'8L $ €5°180'8C $ 9126692 $ 8529886 $ L0 LES'6E $ STVL101 ISNIJX3

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 0SVLL') $ - $ 0¥9/seng

- $ - $ 08V9¢ $ 0.66 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ gl y/selipowwo)

- $ veoeg'lL $ 89i¥e's $ 1172082 $ ZL'0GL9L $ 6v1Le0’ll $ 06020l $ 6¥°L06°CL $ 0St/pood

- $ Lzvee’lL $ 999/l $ 1L66lS $ v80.L $ 0192 $ 16901 $ Pvlogy $ s.00p/sonddngy/sieusiepy

Z $ 25629 $ 256.9°¢ $ 296.9°C $ 256.9C $ 256.9C $ 756197 $ ©998.V| $ $,00¢g/s9seydind 18yl

- $ G6°G19°L $ 66'GE9'L $ 10°G59°L $ 2vees'c $ 99¥SO0'v $ SO0CiVY $ 0L'8Ly'e $ s,00z/sHyouag sakoldwg
-8 erISTO  § 1299 § $TLU'S  $ £986R'S  § 6E0SS'B § 0SO0vCL  $ 90ZeEL 5,001/S9LElES
Arenige4 Aienuep laquisdcaqg I13QWISAON JeqolQ Jequisidag SISNIJXT|
- $ 0019G'¢cE $ 2€860'ST $ 96V9Z'LE $ 29/PSLY $ vEGLPVL $ 22°L18VE $ ¥ 0SLO¥ $ SIVLOL INNIATH

- $ - $ - $ 99'8L.C $ - $ - $ - $ S90SL'0¥ $ Y3d1e |00YyoS

- $ = $ 800 $ 600 $ 800 $ 600 $ 200 $ 600 $ JUNOGJTY Hueg/salsju|

- $ = $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ swesinquisy 442V0

- $ 0019G'ce $ vZ'RE0'ST $ 1098¥'8C $ PSLPSLY $ STELPYL $ 69LL8YE  § - $ juswasinquiisy sjejg

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ Sajeg ysed

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ edueleg ysed buiuuibeg
Areniqa- Arenuep Jaqwaoeq JaqLUBnON 18qo0 laquiaydeg 1snbny Anp JANIATY!

2-020¢ 1edA TO0OHOS
NWVHO0Hd 1SVYANYIHE/HONNT

TO0OHOS

9/ "ON J0MISIQ [00y0S 8BpLYEQ



00veEs'ly $ - $o8 = SR Sl $ JONVIVE ONIANT|
G.°6206.1 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ STV.LOL ISNIJX3
0SvLLL $ - $ - $ - $ - $ ov9/seng
05°09¢ $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 9lp/selipollLlo)
lzegz'ss ¢ - $ - $ - $ - $ 0St/pood
evlege § - $ - $ - $ - $ s.00p/selddngy/sieusiepy
08'€98°0¢ $ - $ - $ - $ - $ $,00¢/saseyalnd Jayi0
vevev'se $ - $ - $ - $ - $ s.,00Z/s)yeuag @afojdwy
108222y $ - $ - $ - $ - $ S.001L/ssueleg
JE10L BUNf Ren ludy Yore S3SN3IdXT|
G/'658'02¢ $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SIVLOL INNIATH
1G'626'cr $ = $ - $ - $ - $ ysle 1ooyosg
160 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ JUNO2DY JuegAsaJalu|

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ uLwWIsINqUIRY d4JVD
£1'626'221 % - $ - $ - $ - $ Juswissinquiiey sie1s
- $ = $ - $ - $ - $ S9leg yse)

- $ - $ - % - $ - ¢ 9ouejeg ysen bBujuuibag
el aunp Aep judy yosepy INNIATY]

12-020Z 189 A TOOHOS
WVYH90Hd 1SYAMYIHE/HONNT TOOHDS
9/ "ON 1ouIsIQ [0oyos abpuseQ



OSBA Model Sample Policy

Code: BDDH
Adopted:

Public Comment at Board Meetings

All Board meetings, with the exception of executive sessions, will be open to the public. The Board invites
district community members to attend Board meetings to become acquainted with the program and
operation of the district. The Board may include public comment as an agenda item during its board
meetings, during which members of the public may be invited to share their comments, ideas and opinions
with the Board.

Procedures for Public Comment at Meetings

The Board establishes the following procedures for public comment for in-person meetings during which
public comment will be heard. This information will be accessible and available to all patrons attending a
Board meeting.

1. Public comment is limited to its designated place on the agenda.

2. A person desiring to provide public comment will complete [a sign-in sheet or sign-in card] and
submit it to the Board secretary prior to the Board meeting.

3. A person speaking during the public comment portion of the meeting should state their name and, if
speaking for an organization, the name of the organization. A spokesperson should be designated to
represent a group with a common purpose.

4. A person speaking during the public comment portion of the meeting may comment on an agenda
item or on a topic not on the published agenda.

5. Statements should be brief and concise. [A person giving public comment is limited to an established
time limit of [three] minutes. The [Board chair] has discretion to waive time limits or extend the
overall time allotted for public comment. Additional time will be allocated in a fair and equitable
manner.] [Time limits will be determined based on the number of commenters and the amount of
time available for public comment.] If a person has more comments than time allows or is unable to
comment due to time constraints, the person is encouraged to submit additional comments to the
Board in writing [through the district office].

6.  Inquiries from the public during the designated portion of the agenda, when possible, may be
responded to by the Board chair or referred to the superintendent for reply. Inquiries may, at the
discretion of the Board chair, be referred to the superintendent for response at a later time. The
Board will not respond to inquiries that are expected to be addressed during another designated
portion of the agenda.

7. Topics raised during the public comment portion may be considered for inclusion as agenda items at
future Board meetings in accordance with Board policy BDDC — Determining Agenda for Regular
Meeting.

HR3/00/21 | SL Public Comment at Board Meetings — BDDH
1-3



If public comment will be held as part of a virtual meeting, procedures for public comment will be
included on the published agenda.

Members of the public are able to submit written comments or materials to the Board through the district
office (in person, physical mail or email address). Materials submitted at least [48] hours prior to a Board
meeting] will be provided to the Board prior to the Board meeting, and will be acknowledged during the
Board meeting. Written materials' submitted may not warrant action by the Board.

It is the intent of the Board to ensure communications with individuals with disabilities are as effective as
communications with others. Individuals with hearing, vision or speech impairments will be given an
equal opportunity to participate in Board meetings. Individuals requesting assistance, aids or
accommodations are encouraged to notify the district at least 48 hours, consistent with Board policy
BD/BDA — Board Meetings, prior to the board meeting with the request.

Comments Regarding Staff Members

A person commenting during the designated portion of the agenda may offer objective criticism of district
operations and programs. The Board will not hear comments regarding any individual district staff
member. The Board chair will direct the visitor to the procedures in Board policy [KL - Public
Complaints] for Board consideration of a legitimate complaint involving a staff member. [The association
contract governing the employee’s rights will be followed.] A commendation involving a staff member
should be sent to the superintendent[, who will forward it to the [employee, a supervisor and the Board]].

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

' Written materials may include proposals, petitions, or reports. Proposals, petitions, or reports may be referred to the
superintendent or the Board for consideration and recommendation.

HR3/00/21 | SL Public Comment at Board Meetings — BDDH
2-3



ORS 165.535
ORS 165.540
ORS 192.610 - 192.690
ORS 332.057

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213 (2012); 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2017); 28 C.F.R. Part 35
(2017).

Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008, 42 U.S.C. 12101 et. seq., 29 U.S.C. 705.

Baca v. Moreno Valley Unified Sch. Dist., 936 F. Supp. 719 (C.D. Cal. 1996).

Leventhal v. Vista Unified Sch. Dist., 973 F. Supp. 951 (S.D. Cal. 1997).

HR9/28/17 | PH Public Comment at Board Meetings — BDDH
3-1



Oakridge School District

Classified Employee Appreciation Week
Resolution 21-06

WHEREAS, the education of youth is essential to the future of our community, state,

country and world; and
WHEREAS, classified employees are the backbone of our public education system; and

WHEREAS, classified employees work directly with students, educators, parents,

volunteers, business partners and community members; and

WHEREAS, classified employees support the smooth operation of offices, the safety
and maintenance of buildings and property, and the safe transportation, healthy nutrition

and direct instruction of students; and

WHEREAS, our community depends upon and trusts classified employees to serve

students; and

WHEREAS, classified employees, with their diverse talents and true dedication, nurture

students throughout their school years.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Oakridge Board of Directors proclaims
March 1-5, 2021, to be CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION WEEK; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Oakridge Board of Directors strongly encourages
all members of our community to join in this observance, recognizing the dedication and

hard work of these individuals.



Adopted this day of , 2021,

Signed:

Chair, Oakridge School District Board of Directors

Attest:

Superintendent/Clerk



Lane Education Service District
2021-23 Local Service Plan - Year One
Component District Board Action

As required by ORS 334.175, Lane Education Service District has developed a
Local Service Plan. The process in developing this plan included analysis of all
resolution and core service offerings available to component school districts.

The 2021-23 Local Service Plan - Year One was developed in collaboration with
component district superintendents, Lane ESD administrators and staff, and
reviewed and approved by the Lane ESD Board of Directors on January 5, 2021.

The Local Service Plan contains all services mandated by law. Local Service
Plan services are intended to: Improve student learning; enhance the quality of
instruction provided to students; assure equitable access to resources; and
maximize operational and fiscal efficiencies.

The Board of Directors of the Oakridge School District has completed their
annual review of the Lane ESD 2021-23 Local Service Plan - Year One which
includes services for:

e Students with Special Needs
Instruction, Equity and Partnerships (School Improvement)
Technology
Administrative and Support
Custom Services

The Lane ESD 2021-23 Local Service Plan provides a two-year framework which
must be approved annually by Lane ESD and component district boards no later
than March 1 (ORS 334-175 (5)(b)).

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Lane County

School District Oakridge School District No. 76 hereby authorizes the approval
the Lane ESD 2021-23 Local Service Plan - Year One and requests the Lane
ESD to provide the services described during the 2021-22 (year one) fiscal year
in accordance with ORS 334.175.

This resolution adopted this day of __, 2021.

Chairman or Clerk
School District No. 76



Memorandum of Understanding Between the Oakridge School District and the
Oregon School Employees Association Chapter #46
Regarding Employee Safety During The COVID Pandemic

January 29, 2021

The Oakridge School District (OSD) and the Oregon School Employees Association Chapter #46 (OSEA), hereby agree to
the following Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions
regarding Employee Safety during the COVID pandemic.

a. If a bargaining unit member is exposed to or contracts COVID 19 while on district property, as determined by the
county health authority, such that the employee is quarantined, the employee may use, in accordance with
medical directives, FFCRA leave (up to 10 days of full pay). The District will extend the same benefit under the
same terms, in accordance with FFCRA rules, in case quarantine is ordered during Jan.1-June 30, 2021, even if
the FFCRA is no longer in effect.

b. Employees are required to place their absence in Frontline (AESOP) as soon as they are aware they will be
absent from work. The District problem solves if a sub is not assigned.

2. Health Training Requirements:

Review the Operational Blueprint for Reentry with all staff.

Train all staff on updated protocols, policies, and guidelines to adhere to physical distancing requirements and
recommendations outlined in this guidance and the Operational Blueprint for Reentry.

e Provide ongoing training to staff on new building procedures, cleaning protocols, and COVID 19 safety
requirements.

@ Train all staff on how to access ODE/OHA updates and review requirements.

e Educate all school personnel to know and recognize the most likely symptoms of COVID-19 and how to protect
students and staff from transmissions.

® Train staff on confidentiality requirements under FERPA, HIPAA, and local policy regarding student and staff health
information, including a COVID-19 diagnosis

OTHER:
3. This Memorandum shall expire on June 30", 2021 and shall not set precedent for any future action.

4. During this time period, this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) may be reopened by either party for
renegotiation upon any of the following:

a. Executive Orders or ODE rules are issued that conflict with or modify the terms of this MOA. b. The

State issues mandatory regulations or statutes that contradict or modify the terms of this MOU. c. Any

other binding direction, such as a court decision, that invalidates or

prohibits one or more parts of this MOU.

For the District: For the Association: Oakridge Superintendent:
Date

School Board Chair:
Date




MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
Between
OAKRIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT
And
Oregon School Employees Association Chapter 46
Regarding
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PROVISIONS
DURING 2020-2021 School Year

The following provisions will apply to all OSEA bargaining unit members, hereafter referred to as
employee(s), who retire during the term of the 2020-2021 school year. This agreement shall not serve as
precedent for future contracts. In order to qualify for these benefits, the employee must be eligible for
full Oregon PERS retirement (not early), must choose PERS retirement and must notify the District of
his/her intent to retire no later than April 1, 2021.

1. All employees who retire under the provisions of this agreement, will choose one of the
following options:
a. District will provide 100% of the 2021-2022 cap on medical/vision/dental insurance
for the retiree and qualifying dependents for a period of 12 months beginning October
1, 2021.
b. District will pay employees a $12,000 cash incentive at the time of retirement. This
payment shall be completed no later than October 1, 2021. District cost of FICA and
Medicaid and PERS cost will be deducted from this $12,000 (note: intent is that the total
cost to District is $12,000).

Oregon Employee Association President Date Oakridge School Board Chairperson  Date

Oakridge School District Superintendent Date



